Region 5 Systems
Supporting Wellness and Recovery

Regional Governing Board
AGENDA
February 10, 2025

Apace
4433 S 70%, Lincoln, NE
10:15 a.m. — Noon
(Hybrid) https://regionvservices.zoom.us/j/89741373163
Phone: 402-441-4343
Webpage: www.regionSsystems.net

ALL RGB MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND ARE AUDIO RECORDED

AGENDA ITEM ACTION NEEDED PAGE
1. Housekeeping ........... Discussion N/A
2. Open Meetings Act Informatlon ........................................................................................... Discussion Posted
3. ReollCall.. Call the Roll N/A
4. Approve Agenda Motion N/A
5. Public COMMENL........ccocceirrerirnsrirereniaesessseaenessssresssssserasnsss s sssnssssesrsanessessennessessssisebsensensin Discussion N/A
6. Employee ReCOZNITION ..........coermiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicietic i et Discussion N/A
7. Presentation — Opioid Project — Dr. Erin Linde, Forensic Pathologist, PhysLab ............ Discussion N/A
8. Action / Priority Items
A.  Election of Officers & Appointment t0 BHAC ........ccoiimirerncnninnssecnsseeeeciceessineanens Motion(s) 1

e Interest from Board Members
e Nominations from Board Members

B. November 18, 2024, Regional Governing Board Minutes.........cooeeveeeeeececeneeesinessanenns Motion 2-8
C.  Financial Report... : Motion 9-11
D. FY 24-25 Contractual Agreements Motion(s) 12-13

e  Partnerships for Success

e Prevention Federal Block Grant Recipients

e Network Provider Shifts

e  Zero Suicide Project

e  Stabilization Funds

e Plan for One Amendment

e Housing and Urban Development
E. Opioid Remediation Settlement Funds...........cococcvcviniiiniiinnnnsneneeeeecsce Motion 14-18
F. Revised Interlocal Agreement and ReSoIution.........cccveciiiirincmnincncmrscsiossesseseeseeaenes Motion 19-32
G. BHAC Membership — Gale PORIMann.........c.cccecverircrirniencenimneis v Motion N/A
H. Conflict of Interest Statement — Behavioral Health Advisory Committee .................... Motion 33

9. Other Updates / Information

A. 2025 Regional Governing Board SUrvey .........ccccciicvinmnsiiiniiiinriessieeie e issesssaesaens Discussion N/A
B.  Behavioral Health / Legislative Updates..........ccccociiimriininnsiiniisiininssinsinssssesassassssesennes Discussion N/A
C. CCBHC IMPLemMeEntation.........cvrvereeriesreereerteenreeeesinssisssessssessssesasssesessessessessssassensssens Discussion N/A
D. Increase in Rental Assistance Program Vouchers and HUD Award...........ccccccevevenenen Discussion N/A
E. Office Move — 3600 Union Drive & Stylistic Name Change ........................................ Discussion 34
F. Emergency Protective Custody Pilot... s Discussion N/A
G. Regional Prevention Coalition System Update ............................................................. Discussion N/A
H.  Network Continuous Quality Improvement FY 24-25 Network CQI Synops1s ......... Discussion 35
L FY 24-25 Capacity Utilization Summaries .. Information Only  36-54
J. FY 24-25 Management Report ...................................................................................... Information Only  57-57
K. FY 24-25 Training Plan .. Information Only  58-59

10. Important Dates
e  February 24 — Network Providers Meeting — 9:00 a.m. — Teams

e  March 3 — BHAC Meeting — 10:00 a.m. — Hybrid / Region 5 Systems / 3600 Union Drive, Lincoln, NE
e March 10 — RGB Meeting — 10:15 a.m. — Hybrid / Apace, 4433 S 70% Street, Lincoln, NE



ABBREVIATIONS

General Terms

ACT Team Assertive Community Treatment / PIER

ARPA
ASO
BH
BHAC
BHECN
CAG
CARF

CCBHC
CBC
CCT
CDS
CFS
CHE
CLAS

CMS
COD
CPC
CQI
CRT
DBH
DBT
DHHS
DSH
EBC
EHR
EMDR

EMR
EPC
ERCS
FFS
FIF
FTE
FYI
HIPAA

HOPE
HPRP

HUD
IMD
ITN
JBC
LINCS

LRC
MHB
MHFA
MHSIP
NABHO
NACO

NAMI
NDRA

American Rescue Plan Act

Administrative Service Organization

Behavioral Health

Behavioral Health Advisory Committee

Behavioral Health Education Center of NE

Capacity Access Guarantee

Commission on Accreditation of
Rehabilitation Facilities

Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic

Community Benefits Center

Corporate Compliance Team

Centralized Data System

Children and Family Services

Community Health Endowment

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Services

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

Co-occurring Disorder

Civil Protective Custody

Continuous Quality Improvement

Crisis Response Team

Division of Behavioral Health

Dialectical Behavioral Therapy

Department of Health & Human Services

Disproportionate Share Hospital

Evidence Based Practices

Electronic Health Record

Eye Movement Desensitization and
Reprocessing

Electronic Medical Record

Emergency Protective Custody

Emergency Community Support

Fee for Service

Families Inspiring Families

Full-Time Equivalent (Staff)

Family & Youth Investment

Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996

Higher Opportunities Through the Power
of Employment

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid
Re-housing Program

Housing and Urban Development

Institutions for Mental Disease

Intent to Negotiate

Joint Budget Commission

Linking Individuals/Families in Need of
Community Supports

Lincoln Regional Center

Mental Health

Mental Health Board

Mental Health First Aid

Mental Health Statistics Improvement
Program

National Association of Behavioral Health
Organizations

Nebraska Association of County Officials

National Alliance on Mental Illness

Nebraska Disaster Response Adult

NFFS
NMT
NOMS

NPP
0CO
OoTO
PATH

PIER
PIP
PPP
PRR
QPR

REAL
RFA

RFP

RFQ
RGB
RPC

RPH
RPSC
RQIT
SAMHSA

SAVE
SCIP
SED
SMI
SOC
SOR
SPF
SPMI
SUD
TAPP
TASC
TAY
TIC

ACT
BAART
BVBH
BBH
Cntpt
GW

HS
HOH
IBHS
LFS
MHA
MHCC
ML
ST.M'S
TC

General Terms (continued)

Non-Fee-for-Service / Expense Reimbursement

Network Management Team

National Outcome Measures

Network Provider

Nebraska Partnership Project

Office of Consumer Affairs

One-time-only

Projects for Assistance of Transition from
Homelessness

Partners in Empowerment and Recovery (ACT)

Performance Improvement Plan

Prevention Professional Partner

Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation

Question, Persuade, Refer

Regional Administrator

Rental Assistance Program

Respond, Empower, Advocate, Listen

Request for Approval

Request for Proposals

Request for Qualifications

Regional Governing Board

Regional Prevention Center

Rural Permanent Housing

Regional Prevention System Coordination

Regional Quality Improvement Team

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration

Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements

School Community Intervention Program

Serious Emotional Disturbance

Serious Mental Illness

System of Care

State Opioid Response

Strategic Prevention Framework

Serious and Persistent Mental Illness

Substance Use Disorder

Transition Age Professional Partner

Targeted Adult Service Coordination

Transition Age Youth

Trauma Informed Care

Wellness Recovery Action Plan

Funded Agencies

Associates in Counselling and Treatment
Lincoln Treatment Center

Blue Valley Behavioral Health

The Bridge Behavioral Health
CenterPointe

Goodwill Industries

HopeSpoke

Houses of Hope

Integrated Behavioral Health Services
Lutheran Family Services

Mental Health Association

Mental Health Crisis Center

Mary Lanning Hospital

St. Monica's

Telecare Recovery Center

Wellbeing Initiative



99111WIWO0D dAIIN29X] 8yl uo OA109S SI801 0«

aAnejuasalday anjeuasalday (OvH4a)
(ovHg) @81wwod Jauolssiwwo) Aiunod o Iww o) A10SIApY
AIOSIAPY UljBaH jeloineyag se po10919-9Y 10N yleeH jeloineyag uuewYyod a1es
9]0. 1991}J0 Ul
Jainseai] SNUIU0D 10U 01 SAYSIAA lainseal] guequer
9]04 1921440 Ul 9AIBS
Ale1al10eg 01 9NU1IUOD 01 SUMIA Ale1sloeg WIMBOoA BISUYD
2101 122140 Ul
Jleyn aolA anuIu09 10U 01 SaYSIM ey aoIA al8ezianed uyof
Jauolssiuwo) Aiuno)
lley) pieog se p910919-9Y 10N lley) pieog uuew)yod aies
210y aweN o104 aweN
(uoneulLION ® 8104 Ind 03 uado) (panuind 8104)
9z0¢ Aienige4d 01 Gzoz Alenigad :wist SO1O0N Gz0z Aenigad 01 420z Aenigad :wus)
(9o SAIINS9X3) SI90IH0 S20¢

G20z ‘0l Aenugag
9911WW0D AIOSIAPY UlleeH elolreyag 0} wswiuloddy
R

S192140 40 U0ONI9F« GC0C
pleog SuiuIanog jeuoigey
swalsAs g uoisay




REGIONAL GOVERNING BOARD

REGION V SYSTEMS
MINUTES

November 18, 2024

Apace / Hybrid
4433 South 70th Street
Lincoln, NE
10:15 am.

MEMBERS Kenny Harre, Fillmore County; Emily Haxby, Gage County; Gale Pohlmann, Jefferson County;

PRESENT: Christa Yoakum, Lancaster County; Michael Weiss, Nemaha County; Dan Crownover, Otoe
County; Jan Lang, Pawnee County; John Caverzagie, Richardson County; Janet Henning,
Saline County; Bill Reece, Saunders County; Ken Schmieding, Seward County (Zoom); Dean
Krueger, Thayer County; Leroy Ott, York County

MEMBERS Ryan Svoboda, Butler County; Les Agena, Johnson County; Jerry Westring, Polk County
ABSENT:

OTHERS Shane Ideus, Unico; Kiley Wiechman, Tanner Weir, HBE LLP; Tami DeShon, Renee’ Dozier,
PRESENT:  Theresa Henning, Trina Janis, Patrick Kreifels, Kim Michael, Sandy Morrissey, Erin Rourke,
Amanda Tyerman-Harper, and Marti Rabe, Region V Systems

HOUSEKEEPING / CALL TO ORDER
Pohlmann called the meeting to order at 10:26 a.m.

OPEN MEETINGS ACT INFORMATION

Pohlmann noted the Open Meetings Act information is posted in the meeting room and reminded Board members
that the meetings are open to the public and are audiotaped. The agenda is posted for public viewing at
regionSsystems.net. Notification of this meeting and information regarding availability of the agenda was
provided through a legal notice in the Lincoln Journal Star, published November 10, 2024.

ROLL CALL / AGENDA
Roll call followed. A quorum was present.

Present: Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County,
Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County, York County

Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, Polk County

Reece made a motion, seconded by Yoakum, to approve the November 18, 2024, agenda as presented. Voting
aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County,
Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York
County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

STAFF RECOGNITION
Munira Husovic was recognized in absentia for 15 years of service as a Traditional Professional Partner.
Pohlmann highlighted her individual responsibilities, recognized her strengths, and acknowledged her dedicated

service to Region V Systems.




November 18, 2024
Regionai Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 2 of 7

ACTION / PRIORITY ITEMS

September 9, 2024, Regional Governing Board Minutes: Lang made a motion, seconded by Henning, to
approve the minutes of the September 9, 2024, meeting as presented. Fillmore County, Gage County, Lancaster
County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County,
Seward County, Thayer County, York County; Abstain: Jefferson County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County,
Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

Organizational Insurance Review — Shane Ideus, Unico:

Ideus provided the organizational liability insurance review commenting that the marketplace is hard right
now with insurance rates increasing. Ideus noted that most entities are seeing an increase of up to ten percent.
For Region V a successful insurance continuation was completed and realized a premium decrease for
workers compensation and a new carrier for Cyber insurance. The annual review ensured that the risk
assessment was acceptable.

When asked about changes related to the office move, Ideus stated that Unico will endorse the current policy
with Apace when the lease begins March 1, 2025.

Yoakum made a motion, seconded by Caverzagie, to approve the Organizational Insurance Review as
presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha
County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward
County, Thayer County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County.
Motion carried.

FY 24 CPA Fiscal Audit Report — Kiley Wiechman, Tanner Weir, LBE LLP:

Wiechman and Weir presented audit findings from the FY 23-24 Financial Audit. The Board received copies
of the report at the meeting today. Wiechman and Weir reviewed financial statements, fund financial
statements, and other notes and supplementary information and briefly explained the audit process and the
variables in fund balances.

In the Summary of Auditor’s Results an unmodified audit report was issued; there were no opinions or
deficiencies in internal controls. There was no noncompliance disclosed, and an unmodified audit report was
issued on compliance for Region V.

Reece made a motion, seconded by Henning, to approve the FY 23-24 Fiscal Audit as presented. Voting aye
were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County,
Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York
County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

NETWORK PROVIDER PRESENTATION — JON DAY, BLUE VALLEY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
(BVBH)

Day provided Board members with brochures and the most recent annual report noting that BVBH is the
largest provider of outpatient services in Nebraska, serving over 6,000 individuals a year. BVBH operates
eleven offices, including one in Lincoln with a staff of ninety-five. BVBH provides mental health and
substance use disorder services for adults and children including outpatient therapy, community support, and
medication management.

Day shared two concerns. Medicare has opened its network to licensed clinicians with the intent to increase
access to services. Providers are required to bill Medicare first and also are required to accept the Medicare
rate and then can bill Medicaid for the 20 percent Medicare does not cover. An unintended consequence is
that Medicare rates are substantially lower than Medicaid rates, and BVBH has seen a significant decrease in
revenue. As a result, BVBH has stopped enrolling new participants who are dually eligible and is limiting
services for current participants.

A second concern relates to Capacity Access Guarantee funding, which is funding to help pay for additional
expenses required to maintain the rural offices. The Division has reduced those funds by $118,000 in this
biennium.

Based on these twb concerns, Day expressed fears about being able to maintain all the rural offices. Staffing
is especially difficult in rural areas, and BVBH must pay competitive rates in order to secure and retain staff.
Day commented that BVBH may ask for a Letter of Support as the Legislative Sessions starts in January.
Pohlmann mentioned that this should be a topic for discussion when a Senator attends a county board meeting.



November 18, 2024
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 7

Financial Report:

DeShon presented the financial report through September 30, 2024, discussing the various items that are
currently over budget and providing rationale for those overages. A majority of the highlighted items are
annual expenditures, so it is anticipated that they will fall within the budget by the end of the year. With 25
percent of the fiscal year completed, total expenditures stand at 24.37 percent.

Weiss made a motion, seconded by Reece, to approve the Financial Report as presented. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee
County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York County;
Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

FY 24-25 Contractual Agreements: Henning presented contract information for the following:
Plans for One:

L]

These are specialized contracts for persons with higher needs. The contracts with Paradigm, and Capture
Developmental and Community Services, and Telecare are for the purpose of integrating two individuals who
are transitioning from the Lincoln Regional Center or providing staffing within a residential setting for
persons with high intensity needs.

Henning made a motion, seconded by Reece, to approve the Plans for One contracts as presented. Voting aye
were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County,
Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York
County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

State Opioid Response (SOR):

There are changes to several of these contracts from contracts originally approved based on DHHS’
interpretation of allowable expenses. The contract with KidGlov is being reduced to $3,800. There are no
changes to the contracts with J. Chad Professional Training, Crete Public Schools, and CenterPointe. The
contract with BayMark Health Services is being increased to $56,791. The contract with Marcus Theater was
for activities that were not allowable, and that contract will not move forward.

Lang made a motion, seconded by Crownover, to approve the SOR contracts as presented. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee
County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York County;
Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

Prevention Block Grant:

L]

There were changes to the contracts with Nebraska State Patrol and Counter Tools which are for the purposes
of creating a law enforcement / youth partnership in assuring establishments are not selling alcohol to minors
and providing technical assistance to commercial tobacco prevention and control efforts through the Region.
The contract with the State Patrol was increased by thirty-three percent, and the contract with Counter Tools
was decreased by eighteen percent.

Henning made a motion, seconded by Crownover, to approve the Prevention Block Grant contracts as
presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha
County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward
County, Thayer County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County.
Motion carried.

Partnerships for Success (PES):

These contracts with Laura Osborne, Public Health Solutions, Brooke Fullerton, and Lincoln Police
Department are for the purposes of implementing PFS deliverables within their respective counties and
creating a law enforcement / youth partnership in assuring establishments are not selling alcohol to minors.
Yoakum made a motion, seconded by Henning, to approve the PFS contracts as presented. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee
County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York County;
Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.



November 18, 2024
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 4 of 7

Administrative:

These contracts with Behavioral Health Education Center of Nebraska and Kissel, Kohout, ES Associates are
for the purposes of focusing on workforce development in the behavioral health field and providing lobbying
services and support to Regional Behavioral Health Authorities. The contract with Kissel, et. al. was moved
from a three-year contract to a five-year contract to secure a better rate. The contract(s) with “Various
Vendors,” will allow the Region to expend up to $430,00 for expenses related to the upcoming office
relocation and represents an increase from $360,000.

Henning made a motion, seconded by Crownover, to approve the Administrative contracts as presented.
Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

Evidence-based Training:

These contracts with Intuitive Mind Training and Consulting and Motivate 2 Communicate are for the
purposes of training and consultation to implement Dialectical Behavioral Therapy and Motivational
Interviewing, respectively. Due to funding cuts the contract with Intuitive Mind is being decreased by forty-
eight percent, and the contract with Motivate 2 Communicate is being decreased by twenty-six percent from
the amounts previously approved.

Reece made a motion, seconded by Henning, to approve the Evidence-based Training contracts as presented.
Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

Network Provider — End of FY 23-24 Contract Shifts:

These contracts with CenterPointe, Goodwill, HopeSpoke, Integrated Behavioral Health, Lutheran Family
Services, Mental Health Association, St. Monica’s, and Telecare are shifts made following the June billing
in order to maximize funding. Some contract amounts were decreased while others were increased based on
utilization during the fiscal year. These contracts provide mental health and substance use disorder services
for adults and children in the Region V geographical area. The contract with IBHS shows a significant
increase of $167 percent based on funding provided for the Voluntary Crisis Response Center.

Yoakum made a motion, seconded by Krueger, to approve the Network Provider End of FY 23-24 Contract
Shifts as presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County,
Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County,
Seward County, Thayer County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk
County. Motion carried.

Revised Interlocal Agreement

Kreifels presented the revised interlocal agreement noting the changes made since initial approval in
September. Kreifels stated that he had discussions with county clerks, county attorneys, and board members
about these changes. If approved, Michael will send revised documents to Counties for approval and
signature. Kreifels stated that he would like to see these Interlocal Agreements approved by all sixteen
counties by the end of December 2024.

Henning made a motion, seconded by Harre, to approve the amended Interlocal Agreement as revised and
allow Kreifels to negotiate any minor changes to the document. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage
County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson
County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York County; Nays none; Absent:
Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

Resolution:

Harre made a motion, seconded by Caverzagie, to approve the Resolution as presented. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee County,
Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York County; Nay:
Gage County; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.



November 18, 2024
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page Sof 7

FY 23-24 Region V Annual Report:

Kreifels presented the FY 23-24 Region V Annual Report noting that every department at the
Region contributes to the process of compiling this information. Kreifels briefly highlighted a number of
areas of the Annual Report including the annual letter to stakeholders, Governing Board contributions, and
numbers of persons served by County. Kreifels attributed the increase in persons served in part the end of
Medicaid unwind and service expansion. Kreifels briefly discussed the service array and recovery outcomes,
perception of care data, expanded services, the Housing and Professional Partner program, the Zero Suicide
Initiative, opioid abatement strategies and other areas of the report. Data indicates that services provided
produce positive outcomes, often outperforming other Regions and states.

Y oakum made a motion, seconded by Reece, to approve the FY 23-24 Region V Annual Report as presented.
Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

FY 23-24 Region V Management Summary {(draft):

Rourke presented the FY 23-24 Management Summary discussing the thirty-nine Performance Improvement
Plan (PIP) Indicators monitored during the previous fiscal year, Network Services, Continuous Quality
Improvement Concerns / Requests, the Professional Partner Program, and Housing commenting that most of
these areas met the established threshold. Many of these PIPS were carried over to FY 24-25. Rourke briefly
discussed the waitlist data noting that the wait for dual disorder residential treatment is the longest wait as
there are only twenty beds available. Persons without a priority such as IV drug use, or pregnancy wait the
longest for treatment.

Crownover made a motion, seconded by Yoakum, to approve the FY 23-24 Region V Management Summary
(draft) as presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County,
Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County,
Seward County, Thayer County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk
County. Motion carried.

Prevention Mini-Grant Award Summary:

Morrissey presented the mini-grant applicant, Saunders County TeamMates, which is requesting $1,000 for
coordination activities.

Yoakum made a motion, seconded by Crownover, to approve the mini-grant applicant as presented. Voting
aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) Grant Award Summary:

Asian Community and Cultural Center has requested funds for two WRAP III Trainings. Morrissey
mentioned that, following these trainings, the Asian Center will be able to train trainers to providle WRAP
training in the future.

Y oakum made a motion, seconded by Henning, to approve the CLAS Summary requests as presented. Voting
aye were Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County, York County; Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

FY 23-24 Site Visit Reports:

Tyerman-Harper presented the site visit reports for Associates in Counseling and Treatment, The Bridge
Behavioral Health, CenterPointe, HopeSpoke, Houses of Hope / TASC / Touchstone, Integrated Behavioral
Health, Lutheran Family Services, Mental Health Association, Mental Health Crisis Center, and St. Monica’s.
Tyerman-Harper pointed out that the site visit process was delayed due to the lower capacity as an adequate
sample was not available in some cases to proceed with the audit. Tyerman-Harper drew attention to areas
where all units were unable to be verified, any corrective action required, and results of program fidelity
reviews which required corrective action as well. A number of follow-up audits remain to be conducted to
close out the fiscal year.

Reece made a motion, seconded by Yoakum, to approve the site visit reports as presented. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Lancaster County, Nemaha County, Otoe County, Pawnee



November 18, 2024
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 6 of 7

County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County, York County;
Nays none; Absent: Butler County, Johnson County, and Polk County. Motion carried.

OTHER UPDATES / LEGISLATION / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Exiting Board Member Appreciation:

e At this time Kreifels took the opportunity to present a certificate, thank you card, and Region V mug to Gale
Pohlmann and Janet Henning, thanking them for their many years of service to Region V. Kreifels commented
that their valuable historical knowledge will be missed in the future.

Behavioral Health / Legislative Updates: Kreifels presented the following information:

o Kreifels is continuing to meet with senators and candidates and has six remaining. Kreifels thanked Board
members who participated in the meetings.

e Dr. Thomas Janousek has been named the Behavioral Health Director for DHHS, replacing Tony Green who
was serving as Interim Director.

e The Federal Communications Commission is implementing geo-routing for the 988 system which will move
from using the area code to the actual location of the person calling. Calls will be routed to the call center in
the caller’s geographic location rather than based on the phone number.

e The Division of Behavioral Health is negotiating with the Department of Justice due to being out of
compliance with the Olmstead Act. The Division of Behavioral Health is considering a waiver for additional
Medicaid Services and submitting a Medicaid Plan amendment in January.

e DHHS approved seven agencies as Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC) statewide.
CenterPointe and Lutheran Family Services are included in those seven and serve our 16 county area. A soft
launch is scheduled for July 1, 2025, and the official date the CCBHCs will become operational is January
2026.

e The longtime collaboration between Houses of Hope and CenterPointe called Touchstone was dissolved.
Touchstone is a short-term residential treatment provider. The current location for Touchstone is building
owned by CenterPointe. Houses of Hope will need to vacate that building by June of 2025. The Region is
working with Houses of Hope to provide encouragement and support during the transition as they seek to
relocate this service. CenterPointe intends to move the dual residential program to the P Street address.

Coordinated Specialty Care Update:

e Tyerman-Harper reported that the Request for Proposals (RFP) was released in October and one applicant
attended the Bidders Conference and subsequently submitted an RFP. That agency has since withdrawn its
application. There is another provider that expressed interest in providing this service and that provider will
be submitting a plan.

Opioid Remediation Settlement Funds:

e Janis reported that Region V has received $3,338,000 and has obligated $1,791.200.60 of those funds.

e Technical assistance site visits were held with grant awardees in October.

e Janis commented that the funding to Physicians Laboratory to facilitate transportation of bodies of suspected
overdose has not been utilized. Dr. Linde will present more information about this project at the February
meeting as efforts continue to broaden awareness about this need.

e The vending machine has been installed at CenterPointe and has already been completely restocked. To date
thirty-five packets of Deterra, one hundred twenty-one first aid kids, one hundred ninety-five Narcan boxes
and fifty safe sex kits have been dispensed. The vending machine for Matt Talbott will be installed soon.

SquareOne:

e Dozier reported that outpatient services began in July with the majority of referrals coming from schools.
Since its inception SquareOne has served fifty-six youth with fifty-four of those youth being able to remain
in the community. CenterPointe is focusing on presenting information in the rural areas to law enforcement,
schools, hospitals, and other rural providers to increase awareness of the service. The possibility of using
telehealth to increase access is being explored.

Voluntary Crisis Response Center (VCRC):
e The contract for the VCRC was awarded to Integrated Behavioral Health Services (IBHS). Tyerman-Harper
discussed unfortunate construction delays in bringing up this service, particularly related to receiving the



November 18, 2024
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 7 of 7

building permit. That process was facilitated by a meeting with the construction company foreman, the owner,
the provider, and Sarah Hoyle, who is the Director of Human Services for Lancaster County.

o IBHS is working with Lincoln Police Department on protocols. While the VCRC will not be fully operational
by March 31, 2025, when funding for capacity development will be discontinued, it is the hope that IBHS
can start to serve people on April 1, 2025 on a contingency plan.

FY 23-24 Region V Services Purchased Audit Report (Professional Partner Program) and FY 23-24
Region V Audit Report (Network Coordination): These reports are provided for informational purposes. There
was one finding for the Professional Partner Program and no findings for Network Coordination.

Inpatient Mental Health Care Bed Capacity Review: This report will be going to the Stepping Up steering
committee for review.

Regional Prevention Coordination System Update: No updates.

FY 24-25 Capacity Utilization Summaries: Provided for informational purposes. Kreifels commented that the
Region will be requesting additional funding to maintain the current volume of housing vouchers and will be
requesting additional funds due to increased utilization.

FY 24-25 Network Management Report: Provided for informational purposes.

Training Plan: Provided for informational purposes.

September 3, 2024, Executive Committee Minutes: Provided for informational purposes.

Other Business: None

IMPORTANT DATES

e November 25 — Network Provider Meeting — 9:00 a.m. (Cancelled)

¢ January 29 — BHAC Meeting — 10:00 a.m. — Region V Systems, 1645 N Street

e February 10 — RGB Meeting — 10:15 a.m. — Hybrid, Apace, 4433 South 70™ Street

ADJOURN
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 12:15 p.m.



Region V Systems
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2024

Financial:Row -Amount
ASSETS

Current Assets
Bank
1000 - Cash - Checking
1002 - Cash - Opioid Settlement Funds
1003 - Cash - CD
1004 - Cash - Petty Cash (Reg V)
1005 - Cash - Section 125
1006 - Cash - YAB Checking
Total Bank
Accounts Receivable
1100 - Accounts Receivable - Federal
1105 - Accounts Receivable - State
1110 - Accounts Receivable - County
1115 - Accounts Receivable - Grants
1120 - Accounts Receivable - Other
Total Accounts Receivable
Other Current Asset
1150 - Section 125 - Deposit
1220 - Accumulated Depreciation
_ Total Other Current Asset
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
1200 - Furniture & Equipment
1210 - Lease Asset
Total Fixed Assets
Total ASSETS
Liabilities & Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
1301 - Accounts Payable - Emp Ins Premiums
1302 - Accounts Payable - COBRA Ins Premiums
1303 - Accounts Payable - AFLAC Insurance
1304 - Accounts Payable - Insurance
1305 - Accounts Payable - Other
Total Accounts F’ayable
Other Current Liability
1310 - Accured Vacation
1318 - Pension - Employee Contribution
1320 - Section 125- Med/Chiid Care
1321 - FLEX - Medical Insurance
1323 - HSA contrubution
1350 - Suspense
1360 - Lease Liability
Total Other Current Liability
Total Current Liabilities
Equity
2000 - General Fund
2010 - Fed - Homeless Funds
2020 - SPG (Non-Grant) Funds
2025 - Fed - SPG Funds
2030 - State - Funds
2040 - State - Funds (Prior Yr)
2045 - State - Transition Grant Funds
2048 - State - Workforce Stabilization Fund
2050 - State - Native American Funds
2055 - Equipment Fund
2060 - YAB Fund
2065 - State - Opioid Resettlement Fund
NS-005 - Opening Balance
Retained Earnings
Net Income
Total Equity
Total Liabilities & Equity

$1,498,026.50
$3,265,305.93
$260,677.08
$100.00
$6,740.02
$3,556.23
$5,034,405.76

$5,416.00
$14,648.61
$25,425.72
$17,884.07
(812,161.82)
$51,212.58

$4,874.00
($872,017.31)
($867,143.31)

$4,218,475.03

$982,430.67
$657,072.32
$1,639,502.99
$5,857,978.02

$29,755.64
($1,354.18)
($6,829.39)

($541.44)
$12,729.50
$33,760.13

$412,761.06
$46,993.20
$2,823.68

($33,589.38)
$22,781.02

($543.22)
$657,072.32
$1,108,298.68
$1,142,058.81

$1,388,322.50
$8.00
$1,716.40
($34,187.39)
$184,044.89
$1,188.66
$73,728.96
$3,292,196.00
$114.66
$124,467.26
$7,101.54
$2,562,381.91
($45.00)
($3,117,844.17)
$4,715,919.21
$5,857,978.02



Region V Systems
Income Statement

December 31, 2024
Financial Row Amount ~ Amount
Ordinary Income/Expense December Year to Date
Income
3000 - Federal - SUD $128,002.21 $794,894.73
3005 - Federal - MH $17,215.47 $565,106.00
3015 - State - Behavioral Health $1,154,052.42 $6,049,087.74
3020 - County - SUD $10,247.75 $121,508.50
3030 - County - MH $69,658.83 $619,518.48
3035 - Grant Income $7,286.00 $1,166,938.06
3055 - Miscellaneous - Other $37,231.55 $222,988.97
3060 - Administrative Services Income $4,568.73 $35,362.98
3065 - Event Income $0.00 $50.00
3070 - Interest Income $6.97

$1,428,269.93

Total - Income

Gross Profit $1,428,269.93
Expense
5000 - Provider Expenses $719,897.41 $4,721,503.72
5001 - EBP Specific $8,218.60 $111,510.08
5002 - Non-EBP $1,199.16 $72,386.64
5005 - Misc Payments $5,000.00 $9,699.80
5010 - Transition Payments $0.00 $1,576.13
5020 - EPC $4,576.00 $64,896.00
5030 - Initiatives $0.00 $7,514.68
5050 - CLAS Payments $450.00 $2,030.00
5055 - Consumer Voice-Recovery $192.35 $8,593.29
5070 - DHHS PFO $38,317.86 $104,769.94
5080 - Security Deposit/App Fees $10,248.00 $69,736.35
5080 - Other Related Costs $5,605.99 $36,082.90
5100 - Furnishings $7,600.00 $189,916.78
5110 - Housing Related Debt $0.00 $1,734.67
5120 - Landlord Mitigation $0.00 $3,000.00
5130 - Flex Funds $33,453.54 $91,935.07
5140 - Admin Fee $17,584.04 $62,694.53
5150 - Advertising $0.00 $400.00
5160 - BHAC Expenses $0.00 $1,243.87
5170 - Auditing $6,320.00 $19,320.00
5180 - Background Checks $0.00 $807.30
5200 - Consulting $0.00 $3,250.00
5210 - Contract Services $9,173.97 $85,886.76
5230 - Disability Insurance $301.30 $1,506.50
5240 - Employee Benefit Fees $1,547.10 $31,425.32
5250 - Equipment $4,644.97 $38,844.97
5260 - Evaluations $0.00 $510.00
5270 - FICA Taxes $20,088.01 $129,909.50
5280 - General Insurance ($2,736.05) $51,534.95
5290 - RGB Expenses $294.00 $1,763.13
5300 - Heaith Insurance $7,797.29 $379,077.42
5310 - HSA ER Contribution $3,447.88 $20,692.66
5320 - Legal $34,609.16 $52,877.16
5330 - Meeting Expenses $70.00 $2,381.02
5340 - Miscellaneous $1,628.91 $2,587.08
5350 - Pension $19,646.75 $126,178.44
5360 - Photocopying/Printing $1,848.00 $8,543.56
5370 - Postage $0.00 $4,419.91
5380 - Rent $167,820.32 $955,879.63
5390 - Repairs & Maintenance $32,112.36 $46,650.74
5400 - Salaries $256,818.58 $1,553,908.80
5410 - Software Purchases/Maintenance $662.40 $130,723.09
5420 - St Unemployment Taxes $0.00 $162.84
5430 - Staff Development $1,898.01 $17,502.10
5440 - Staff Development-Non-State $1,926.96 $13,197.09
5450 - Subscr, Dues, Books $4,014.13 $14,022.00
5460 - Supplies $312.20 $6,606.79
5470 - Telephone $3,162.92 $29,035.37
5480 - Training Expenses $0.00 $26,056.74
5490 - Travel $3,501.42 $18,614.96
5500 - Utilities $8,746.60 $66,239.37
5505 - Utility Deposit $0.00 $227.59
5510 - Vehicle Maintenance $5,301.89
5520 - Workers Comp insurance $6,929.00
e | $9,413,798.13
Net Ordinary Income $232,724.99
Net Income $232,724.99




SUMMARY OF ALL ADMINISTRATIVE PROGRAMS & FYI

December 2024 (50.0%)

_ll_

YEAR BUDGET % %
Budget Line to
BUDGET ITEM TO DATE (12 MO) EXPENDED Overall Budget
Administrative Revenue
Interest $71,067.66 $5,000 1421.35% 2.47%
Sub Lease $36,437.59 $55,007 66.24% 27.19%
Administrative Services $35,362.98 $142,320 24.85% 70.34%
Total Admin. Revenue $142,868.23 $202,327 70.61% 100.00%
Administrative Expenditures
Salaries $1,373,393.41 $3,515,490 41.97% 57.03%
Benefits $650,001.19 $1,305,811 21.18%
Payroll Taxes $186,379.83
Employee Insurance $345,301.90
Pension $118,319.46
Advertising $0.00 $2,500 0.00% 0.04%
BHAC Mtg Exp/Travel $1,166.99 $1,800 64.83% 0.03%
Auditing $18,093.27 $26,000 69.59% 0.42%
Background Checks $807.30 $2,000 40.37% 0.03%
Compliance / Mandates $0.00 $2,000 0.00% 0.03%
Consulting $0.00 $2,000 0.00% 0.03%
Contract Labor $39,868.10 $120,000 33.22% 1.95%
Employee Benefit Fees $29,514.84 $58,000 50.89% 0.94%
Equipment & Furnishings ($1,546.81) $24,000 -6.45% 0.39%
Client Evaluation $510.00 $34,284 1.49% 0.56%
Event Expenses $0.00 $0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance - General $42,991.81 $60,000 71.65% 0.97%
RGB Mtg Exp/Travel $1,763.13 $3,300 53.43% 0.05%
Legal Fees $18,268.00 $25,000 73.07% 0.41%
Meeting Expenses $920.42 $7,000 13.15% 0.11%
Miscellaneous $814.07 $1,500 54.27% 0.02%
Photocopying / Printing $7,947.08 $25,000 31.79% 0.41%
Postage $4,185.19 $7,500 55.80% 0.12%
Rent/Utilities $190,168.68 $398,200 47.74% 6.46%
Repairs & Maintenance $8,598.96 $23,500 36.59% 0.38%
Software Purch/Maint $114,113.62 $124,100 91.95% 2.01%
Staff Development $27,904.27 $48,900 57.06% 0.79%
Subscr., Dues & Books $13,228.83 $17.565 75.36% 0.28%
Supplies $4,462.93 $25,000 17.85% 0.41%
Telephone $26,378.57 $57,675 45.74% 0.94%
Training Expenses $0.00 $0 0.00% 0.00%
Travel $14,019.24 $38,000 36.89% 0.62%
Vehicle Maintenance $5,301.89 $12,000 44 18% 0.19%
Purchase of Services $42,989.61 $95,000 45.25% 1.54%
Administrative Fees $2,454.35 $101,351 0.00%
Total Admin. Expenditures $2,638,318.94 $6,164,466 42.80% 100.00%
Relocation Expenditures $430,000 50.12%

Equipment & Furnishings $156,615.24

Legal Fees $34,609.16

Miscellaneous $1,599.40

Repairs & Maintenance $22,712.00

Total Relocation Expenditures $215,535.80




_12_

“S3p1ys 19eHU0d 25Y) da0.dde 0] plrog Ay} WOy UOROTN 1papaIN uoNIY

‘Junoure joeRuod pasoxdde
Joenuo) A[snoraaid uIoy 94,8S JO 35ea10U] <70z ‘0¢ 2unr
OVHE PUe “19piAaId JIOMAN £Q A uoiSo saneniu] SuRQIEM
ore jearydeidood SwasAS A w013y Ul Sjape J0J S301AI0S ey WAL ‘s souenduwo) are1odio) SWASAS A U0IST HAQ-SHEA — el - b2z ‘1 AInf bl {
01 0S0°59v$
‘Junoure 198RU0d paroidde
Joenuon Aisno1aexd woly 9,/ JO 3583193 <207 “0¢ 2ung
OVHSE PU® “JApIA0I FIOMIAN SIAID 5[] [BI01ARYSE PIIRISAIUY
<are feorgdeidoad swashs A uoIgay Ul SIMPE 10] S0IA13S ey BN . swalsAS A uoiday ) : <k SIOIAIRS UIfesH [e101ARyg P
ures, souejdwo)) sres0diod HIAa-SHHA $00IA10S (IESH [PIOIARYSE] 20T T Alnf
pateidan] o} 1€6°YT6$
‘Junoure 10enuod paroidde
Asnotan1d woy %g[ JO 95eaIdU] .
gare [eolydei80a8 | DVHE Pue 19PIAOII HIOMPN | o £5 A uodad jenuod : $70Z ‘0g Aunf SEOON 1S
SUIOISAS A UOISY UI SHOPE 0] SIOIAISS ISNQE dOURISQNS PUE ieay [eIusSN ‘urea, souerdwo) srerodio) : Hga-SHHA —— - 4207 ‘1 AInf o
01 65L°9128
‘Junoure 10enuod paaoidde
) 18008 . - Aisnoraaid woy ot Jo 35ea1ou] P
. eore eolydeidosd | OVHE pue hwn_mew Hmﬁwz swopshg A uodayg| oD e =H esH [IolAeyag 3pUg AYL
SUIAISAS A UOIZY Ul SHOPE 10} SA(AISS osnqge 20UBISqNS PUe YI[Esy [EIUaN urea, 9ouerjduro)) sy D HIa-SHHA ESH [RIOATYRH oFpug oyl 20T "1 Alf
0} £68°616%
S R A T Ty &g pamansan (ERoTVS o |- Iy PEQUOD) ] rmﬁu : .
o R ~ A tchiad - Aaemug ALY .|. g | d eSS .
SHIYS IEIU0D) JIPIAGL] NIOMIIN
*510e1) 102 s1yy3 daoadde 03 pagog Y} WLy UOYOIN :PIPIIN uoyIvy
‘Hurdea/Funjouss osoy) 10§ uoHULAIIUL DVHM pue jhicilile] 620z ‘s1 sunp
7 : : i A t X
pue Sururen ‘uoiesnpa sptacid o) ureiSoxd e ‘urerdorg X ou optaoid o, wreay, souedwo)) sjerodio) SWASAS A U0 HEa-SHEA SAIEIIU] PIUL UL O} 000 SES - 620z ‘1 Aeniqag AERIU UL 3L
{Slopny 331N0% ; T - 3
asoding Ag pamalaay o TR, JunowWYy 3IB1JU0D) st F voto.m awlL _ fnoyg wEﬁEEcn«
m«ﬁumn—_uoﬁ JURBID) HJoo[q [813pag UWONUIALJ
*s)aE1)u0d 353y} dA0idde 03 preog 2y) w0y BONOJA PIPIN uonmvy
‘wrerdord uonuaAIjuL
Jo1Iq pue SUruasIos [OY0d[e Paseq-qam B (dgDTA) 2[501d 101AYdg 339[[0D
[ o oY ut ANSI9ATU() UBAJ[SIM BYSBIGIN pue “KHSIDAIUY) AURO(] “U[0ULT
! [SIDAL . N ¢ d
@ySRIGIN JO AUSIDAIU() ‘KISIDATUL ISHUSAPY UOLU[] “qjooury QDS “S30USIOG YIEdH mVMMm MHE._MM”EM ”HM%MZ swalskg A uoiday SEE.oU Sdd - mouwﬁwﬁmhomﬁwoi i seoc mnm Ma::“ﬁ%m 20UBL[Y UOHUIASIJ 1RIZ[0D) BYSLIGIN
10 339][00) UBAIg 1E SJUAPNIS JO uonedronred s8emoouy aJ1] 989][00 0} UCHHSURL L 2 o & HEd-SHHA 1213a[10D PHSRIQAN 01 YIS'LTS vzoc 1429 b
[1JS5300NS 910U O} SANUNOD SUI[ES PUe ‘UOSPIEYINT ‘19)sBoUET Ul Sjuared
o1 ysiweds pue ysy3ug y1oq uf YOOgpUeY SunUSIed JO IIMOd SISILINL 4O aplaold
‘1pjooq ayy Burzimn
TUSWSAIOAUL 115y} Surpredar 3e) 0} spuared 10] £oaIns & yum Suore a8edqom | DVHSE PUE “19pIA0I SOMIBN ) 10e1u0) SJId . 5707 ‘67 loquuandag
MESHZITESLIEL 4} UO 19p{00q SIy) 10§ SFed Surpue] € 91820 pue SaHUnod ‘urea ], souejduio)) ayelodio) swalshs A uoIsy HIg-SHHA AIDPIY O} 00L 9% - $70T 1 Arenuef AQLDP
a01AI0s 0} 1] 9z1euosiad o} ure13oid paseq-00uaplAd Ue WOl 1aPj00q © pueIqay
(Saoqiny Paanos T e
asoding A pamaladyg Kruinsg CRTIL Janowy JIBI1IUCD POLIDJ AUIL], b_u_u..m Bunpenuo)

SIHAUISAISY [EN1IEIIUC)) SWI)SAS A UOIZRY

speuo)) (S4J) sS999Ing 10J mn_:m..o.:t«m




_13_

'$381)U0d 3537} dA0adde 0) pieog 1} WOIJ UOTJOTA :PIPIIN UONIY

-ure13o1d Sursnoyy aanzoddng jusuewag uposury Jo uorsuedx; OVHH pue s suashs A voisag S ¢
1STIOH 9AL §1 d HIOoUIT IO Uot q ureay, souerdwo) sjerodio) 01Z11°59T$ - 520t °1 Arenueg juswdo(aAd(T weqIn) pue JUISIOE]
T e - T R R s -

(ann) .u..._.o_an_owu._H Ex.t D ura_ u:ﬁ:eﬁ.

*JEWPUSWE }381)u0I SIY} dA0xdde o) paeogq 1Y) W0} WONOJA :PIPIIN UOLIY

‘Junouwre
) g 3 S 19eRu0d pasoidde Ajsnotaard ‘¢ aun
1USUNRaL [RIUIPISAT 2INIS FUIATA0AI S[IYM 1)U UOITIY U[0oUl] S OVHY pue swolsAs A UOFaY 1oenuo) WK %45 JO UOGONPIY mNo“N 0¢ aunf arsapal,
woy Suruonisuen feapiapul ue o} lroddns yreay [eIolAeyaq poueyua aptaold of, urea], souerjdwo)) srerodio) HAa-SHHA - 20T ‘11 19qUIIAON
are02[a, 01 O1°SL8"STS
: : ; (s)aony 2AN0S Wit SR b A0 L 0 ) R A e s ey
uman_.:._..._. ] g DRA3NA3Y KaemLg ‘Smpuny {0 unao_Ei. uaw.:.ﬂoo = .—ua..__u.w Ewm. vl ISy m—u_.ﬁmnu"..ﬂ:nou |
JUUPUIULY JOBI)U0)) U I0J Ue[q
*§12€.1)U03 3527} 3Aoxdde 0) preog IY) WOIJ UOHOTA :PIPIAN U0V
"JOJSUR] BIEp SSO[Ureas SuLmnsus pue syse) [enuweut JVH4 pue spung . 9202 ‘1€ Arenue(
Suneurunys £q Loustonys mopyiom aaoidunt pue s35s9001d AQUs BIRP SUIfUIESNS O], ureat, ssuendwo)) agerodio) AHAGHRPI uonezZINIqelS AHEANEPH 0 000°ELS - 6Z0T ‘1 Arenigag AHEAHOPH
. OVHY pue spunj . $TOT 1€ Joquusass(g
aseqelep JuswaFeuew J0BIU0D SUINSAS A UOIFY UI SAIOUIADIJS 9SBIIIUL O], e e iy yordy o Yondy 01 000°01$ iy yosy
; (s)romny anog | s S GRS, : TR D P
asodun Ag pamaiad A ~ . jun : ; e LA I
d apan ...._. Y Aaemng duipuny _ R oE.d JEDUCD, notu& L ; w0 .,hﬁ.”.aﬁ n..u_uun._wu.uo Ry
spunyq uonezi{Iqels
*$10%0110) 353} 2a01ddE 0) piEOg Y3 WOLY UOIOTA :PIPIIN UOHIY
OVHE PUe “I3DIAOL] HIOMION pauruLdlap SAINAIDG $T0T “0g dunp
‘ures ], soueriduwro)) syerodio) SWaIShS A U0ISY aq o], Aiurey Bpusf 03 000°1$ 0k d) - ¥20C ‘1 A;f SOIAI9S Afrure Bpuaf
OVHS PU® “I3pIA0I] JIOMIIN pauruusap aBeytoy $Z0T ‘0g aung
apioms | “wres, souwnduiog yesoduopy [TUIHS AVOBRL g o wensIy 01 000°T§ 01 dy - $202 1 Amg PTALOH TSI
10] SU JB 9SO} JOJ 2IBD IOJES O] SWaSAS yIresy [eIoiaeyaq 10§ paudissp (s[0o} %
saonoe1d 153q JO 39S) YI0MaUIR]] [EUOTRULIOJSURT} 9PISINS 0197 Jo uonejudwsdwy | JVHE PUe “IopIA01d JI0MIIN pauruLslap . $20T ‘0€ aunf
‘urea, souerjduro)) aerodio) swalsks A uoisey aq oL $AYAgD % 000°1§ o dn - ¥20T ‘1 AInf SdvaE
OVHS PUe “19pIA0Id JIOMION swaisk 3 PAUIULIZNP S2IAIRG AJ(Ure,] pue ore)) 1910, $70T “0€ sunp SIOIAIRS
< d dio ISAS A UOIFTY N 3 ¢ d B . .
urea 1, souerjduwo)) ayesodio)y qoL uIAI'T 1910g 01 000°1$ 02 dn 20T ‘1 Amg Ajture,] pue are)) 19)s0,f SUIAL'] Jopeg
eEoC iR RN n A9 pasItay BEnOS Kt | oS- 2uIpunT | AR oW VA KD o) [enduy  Pead WL Aoy funaenuoy

SJUAWIAISY [BNIIBIIUO)) SUWIISAS A U013y

199loag apnIng o1z




Opioid Abatement Obvious Expenditure Proposals moving forward to the Behavioral Health
Advisory Committee and the Regional Governing Board

University of Nebraska/ DopaGE

The University of Nebraska is requesting Opioid Obvious Expenditure funds in the amount of
$84,550 to provide life sustaining substance use education to the students at the largest
university within Region V Systems catchment area, in order to protect them from the risk of fatal
overdose. This proposal supports Region V Systems in achieving the Prevention and Harm
Reduction Priority abatement strategies.

Currently, there is a lack of sufficient substance use and overdose prevention and response
education in university health systems. This gap in education represents a significant threat to the
well-being of UNL students due to behaviors observed in their community that must be
addressed urgently. We seek to ameliorate this deficiency by protecting college students at UNL
from overdose by using DopaGE, an online overdose prevention training portal. DopaGE provides
foundational overdose prevention training by leveraging clinically approved animation and
gamification to maximize student engagement. The virtual DopaGE Overdose Prevention Portal
(“the Portal”) is easily scalable for large groups of students, thereby creating measurable
reductions in death and suffering related to substance use misuse across college campuses. The
Portal, designed specifically for a modern college audience, allows students to play through 4
levels covering objective risk profiles for illicit drugs commonly misused in the college
environment, combined use of drugs and alcohol, and the prevention, recognition, and response
protocols for accidental opioid (Fentanyl) overdose. DopaGE additionally provides students with
easy, direct access to Good Samaritan legislation in Nebraska and the University’s own substance
use policies and resources via the Portal. All DopaGE levels are evidence-based and vetted in a 5-
stage review process by the DopaGE Clinical Advisory Board composed of PhDs and board-
certified physicians in the fields of addiction medicine, adolescent psychology, anesthesiology,
emergency medicine, internal medicine, neuroscience, pharmacology, in addition to a current
medical student. The education provided by DopaGE meets requirements for the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) via the World Wide Web Consortium (W3C), s Web Content Accessibility
Guidelines (WCAG) Level AA Standards. UNL will contract with DopaGE to license the use of the
DopaGE Overdose Prevention Portal over the next year and willinclude the DopaGE Overdose
Prevention Portal as part of curriculum administered to matriculating undergraduate students. The
University and DopaGE have entered into a preliminary contract, Mutual Non-Disclosure
Agreement, Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), and are meeting weekly to

optimize this collaborative initiative.

Students will participate in a survey prior to, immediately following, and 90 days after

their participation in the curriculum. This will allow UNL to examine whether the

implementation of this training program was effective and adapt methodologies to

improve upon our foundation.

_14_.



Budget

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED: $84,550

Personnel TOTAL: $12,800

University of Nebraska- Lincoln Student

Worker

$12,800 < $14.50, 20 hours per week, 36weeks> $10,500 % FICA8% > $840
< Computer station, monitors, docking station > $1,500

Participant Support Costs TOTAL: $71,750

DopaGE Overdose Prevention Portal $71,750

< Annual DopaGE Suite Fee> $60,000

% Setup Fee> $4,250

< Annual Sector Reporting Fee> $2,500 (3)

NOTE: Costs for Senior Personnel, Equipment, and Travel are not associated with this proposal.

Opioid Steering Committee voted to move this proposal forward for funding of the full amount.

Lincoln Lancaster Community Health Department/ Wastewater Surveillance

This project request focuses on the wastewater surveillance operations seeking to more robustly
describe overdoses, particularly from opioids (fentanyl), and human exposure to other high-risk
substances (xylazine, methamphetamine, nicotine, cocaine). Samples are gathered currently
from both wastewater treatment plants managed by the City of Lincoln’s Lincoln Transportation &
Utilities department. These data are then used to describe substance exposure trends from
analyzing the samples to help assess exposure, monitor that exposure and evaluate the trends
and changes in those estimates of human exposure. There are many benefits to this methodology,
including early identification of high-risk substances not previously detected, more robust
evaluation of public health interventions, improved modeling of public health risk due to high-risk
substances and better information for health promotion efforts, to name a few.

Biobot Analytics supports LLCHD by providing both respiratory and high-risk substances (HRS)
testing since November 2023. This HRSP provides details about cocaine, methamphetamine,
fentanyl, xylazine and nicotine with weekly estimates at both wastewater treatment plantsin
Lincoln, Nebraska and provide greatinsights into variability between sites and over time. To date,
trends, spikes and differences have been identified and further applications are being explored.

The goal of the project is to analyze the wastewater sampled at Theresa St and Northeast St WTP
in Lancaster County, NE for high-risk substances through Biobot Analytics with weekly testing.
This testing would provide assessment, monitoring & evaluation support for public health
operations. This information would inform our approaches and allow us to continue having a
positive impact on overdose prevention, and other substances related to behavioral health. It
would benefit roughly 300,000 residents of Lincoln and have the impact of an urban hub being

_15_



able to monitor emerging trends that may permeate outward to connected communities, while
also helping further show proof of concept for how this information can be used to protect and
promote public health.

BUDGET & FUNDING

Cost Overview

The overall annual cost provided by Biobot Analytics for the 2024-2025 testing of the HRSP and
respiratory panel are connected. The full cost is provided as an attachment to this document.

Total Annual Cost: $97,200 (after 25% discount from $129,600)
Monthly Price for First Panel: $8,300 (selected as respiratory panel)

Monthly Price for Second Panel: $2,500 (selected as HRSP)

Existing Funding

LLCHD has marked $57,200 from opioid settlement funds for this wastewater testing. Another
$15,000 has been obtained from Lincoln Transportation & Utilities. This marks a total existing
funding amount in the proposed budget of $72,200.

There is specific funding sources related to opioid settlement funds and other state legislation
being advocated for by some senators that would help with the sustainability of this program if
those funds were able to be allocated partially towards these operations. Those funding
resources are not finalized yet, however.

Funding Request

Primary

LLCHD is requesting an additional $25,000 for this grant to meet the full $97,200 cost of the
Biobot Analytics testing practices. This will go completely towards the services provided by
Biobot Analytics and any services related to analysis, sharing, dissemination or public health
interventions, will be carried out separately.

Secondary

A secondary request to help with providing some flexibility and improved promise of sustainability
is an additional $20,000 for a second and third year. If separate, more sustainable funding is
obtained, this funding request from Region V would be void.

Opioid Steering Committee voted to move this proposal forward for funding of year 1 at
$25,000. It was their recommendation that if LLCHD is in need of funding for year 2 and 3, they
could come back to the committee with an additional proposal.



Opioid Steering Committee
Obvious Expenditure
Opioid Flex Fund Proposal

Date: 4/9/24 (Original Request)

e Opioid flex funds would be utilized to help obtain the resources necessary to meet
identified treatment/rehabilitation needs that can not be provided through other funding
mechanisms or more traditional service provision modalities. They are only available to
individuals residing/seeking service within Region V Systems catchment area.

« Example: Person needing Methadone Treatment, that is not from Lincoln and who does
not have transportation or a place to stay for the consecutive 7 days that they must
report to the treatment center. These funds could be used to cover the cost of
transportation, motel room and/or food for the 6 nights that they must stay in Lincoln.

e Flex Funds may be accessed through a request to Region V Systems Opioid Program.

¢ Request must meet criteria established by Region V Systems.

Amount Requested for Flex Fund Expenses

$50,000
Date: 1/13/2025
Need For Additional Flex Funds
As of 1/13/25 we have spent $38,548.70 of the $50,000 that was approved. We have

helped 52 people in the following ways:

o Secure/remain in recovery housing

e Secure transportation to outpatient treatment

e Assisted with minor car repairs

e Provided phones, phone service and food while in treatment.

We believe these funds are making a difference in the lives of those seeking or in recovery for SUD
and hope to continue to offer assistance where no other assistance has been available.

Amount requested for additional Flex Funds
$75,000

e | have attached one of the many emails, cards and notes we have received from those we
have helped.

_17_



From: Tyler Keup <tylerkeup1983@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 8, 2025 4:54:41 PM
To: Trina Janis <tjanis@region5systems.net>
Subject: Re: Flex Funding

Dear Region 5 Systems,

I'm gratefully sending this email to convey my appreciation for the financial assistance your
organization so kindly provided on behalf of many oxford house members in Lincoln
Nebraska.

As President of the Woods Oxford House | was delighted to hear that assistance was being
made available. Although | unfortunately wasn't able to qualify for funding - this didn't stop
me from doing the paperwork on behalf of other members whom did qualify for assistance
and as a result, | got to see first hand what a difference it made for others who were
struggling financially in our sober living house.

In fact, many who have entered our house, were facing financial difficulties, including
myself, for obvious reasons (the poor choices we made while actively engaging in such
addictive behaviors). Personally, i know all to well how recovery can result in relapse dueto a
variety of factors, including but not limited to, financial stress, and coping with emotions as
one tries to deal with past regrets without self medicating.

However, your help prevented some members from being evicted from Oxford and forced to
live on the streets due to their failure to pay EES {equal expenses shared). Some of these
members had gotten released from jail or treatment without being court ordered and
voluntarily came to Oxford in good faith with no job or money. God knows what would have
happened had they not gotten any help from Region 5.

Additionally, another member who was on drug court and had vehicle problems but got his
car fixed thanks to you. Had he not been able to get this done it surety would have made
getting to drug court, NA and AA meeting, as well as other obligations more difficult.

in closing, | just want to thank you for all that you've done and express my gratitude for "all of
those" who made such a difference. Afterall, trying to rebuild your life after addiction is hard
enough but your willingness to provide aide on behalf of those who are in recovery is
definitely commendable. Thanks for being there for those in need and giving me the pleasure
of seeing how it impacted others as we continue our journey in recovery!

Sincerely,

Tyler Keup

Woods Oxford House President
341 N. 33rd

Lincoln, NE 68503 402 217 4011

_18_



AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT
FOR THE FORMATION OF
THE REGION V COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES PROGRAM
AND REGION 5 SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, the Region V Community Human Services Program was created under
the Nebraska Interlocal Cooperation Act and has operated since August 15, 1974, under an
Amended and Restated Agreement for the Formation of the Region V Community Human
Services Program dated July 6, 2009 (the “Existing Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Existing Agreement, the Region V Community Human
Services Program operates two legal entities: Apace, formerly known as Region V Services,
which provides community-based services to persons with developmental disabilities
(“Apace”), and Region 5 Systems, formerly known as Region V Systems, which provides
community-based behavioral health services and other administrative services (“Region 5
Systems”);

WHEREAS, Apace and Region 5 Systems operate as distinct entities and, as a result,
the members of the independent governing boards of both Region 5 Systems and Apace
believe it to be in the best interest of Region 5 Systems and Apace, respectively, to enter into
separate interlocal agreements; and

WHEREAS, the parties to the Existing Agreement now desire to make certain
amendments to the Existing Agreement to create an amended and restated interlocal
agreement for Region 5 Systems.

NOW THEREFORE this Amended and Restated Agreement is made and entered into
pursuant to the terms of the Nebraska Interlocal Cooperation Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 13-801,
et seq., as amended, and also pursuant to the provisions of Neb. Rev. Stat. 8§ 23-104.01, et
seq., and 71-801 et seq., as amended, among those counties of the State of Nebraska which
have executed this Amended and Restated Agreement as hereafter provided. This Amended
and Restated Agreement amends, restates and replaces the Existing Agreement in its
entirety, except as otherwise provided herein.

1. The Region V Community Human Services Program, consisting of the
following counties located in the State of Nebraska: Butler, Fillmore, Gage, Jefferson,
Johnson, Lancaster, Nemaha, Otoe, Pawnee, Polk, Richardson, Saline, Saunders, Seward,
Thayer and York (each, a “County” or, collectively, the “Counties”), was formed in 1974 and
shall continue in perpetuity unless and until this Agreement is terminated.

2. The purpose of this Agreement is to facilitate cooperative efforts among the
Counties to ensure that persons in the Counties are provided with necessary and legally
authorized community-based behavioral health services and other administrative services.
Pursuant to this Agreement, Region 5 Systems, at the direction of its Governing Board (as
defined in Section 3), shall provide to the Counties: (i) behavioral health services as further
described in Section 4(a), (ii) administrative functions to support the implementation of such
services, including, but not limited to, fiscal, accounting, payroll, purchasing, human
resources and other administrative services, and (iii) such other services as the Governing
Board may deem necessary or appropriate, or as may be required by applicable law, to
promote or further the purposes of Region 5 Systems, as stated in this Agreement or
applicable law. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the ability of Region 5

_19_



Systems to contract, pursuant to applicable law, with other third-party providers, including
individuals or entities, to carry out the obligations of this Agreement.

3. The government, management and administration of Region 5 Systems shall
be vested in a governing board (the “Governing Board” or “Board”) consisting of one member
from each of the Counties’ respective governing bodies (“County Board” or “County Boards”).
Members of the Governing Board shall serve for a term of at least three years but may serve
consecutive three-year terms until such member resigns or is removed or replaced and his
or her vacancy is filled in accordance herewith. Upon the death, disability (such that the
member is unable to effectively serve, as determined by the remaining members of the
Governing Board), removal by the County, or resignation of any Board member, the
Governing Board shall notify the County Board for which the vacancy exists, and such
County Board shall appoint a replacement member within thirty (30) days of such
notification. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by the appropriate
County Board. Members shall serve without compensation but shall be entitled to
reasonable reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in attending
meetings or in the discharge of any duty assigned to them by the Governing Board.

4. Region 5 Systems, at the direction of the Governing Board, is hereby
authorized and empowered to:

(@ organize, plan, initiate, fund, maintain, administer and evaluate
comprehensive behavioral health programs, services and facilities and
to exercise all powers and duties as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. 8§ 71-
808 and 809, as amended;

(b) borrow, receive, collect and otherwise raise or provide funds for
community-based behavioral health services, programs and facilities
in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Governing
Board shall deem appropriate;

(9) purchase, own, lease and hold all real estate and personal property for
the use of Region 5 Systems;

(d) sell, convey, exchange, mortgage, pledge or lease any real estate or
personal property owned or held by Region 5 Systems in such manner
and upon such terms and conditions as the Governing Board shall
deem appropriate;

(e) purchase outright, by installment contract, by mortgage or other
means with the power to borrow funds in connection therewith, hold,
sell, pledge and lease for a period of more than one year, all real estate
and personal property necessary for use of Region 5 Systems, and to
plan, initiate, fund, maintain, administer and evaluate Region 5
Systems’ facilities, programs and services;

® contract for such goods and services from others, either public or
private which provide such services on a vendor basis, and may be
necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the
program and services of Region 5 Systems;

_20_



(2) employ a regional administrator for Region 5 Systems and such other
employees as are necessary to implement Region 5 Systems’ programs;

(h) contract under the Interlocal Cooperation Act with any of the counties
which are a party to this Agreement to exercise any of the powers and
incur any of the obligations that may be incurred by that county to the
extent permitted by law; and

(1) take such other actions as may be necessary, incidental, desirable or
appropriate to the full exercise of the powers described herein.

S. The Governing Board shall make and maintain, as may be amended from time
to time, bylaws specifying the frequency of meetings, meeting places, the method of calling
meetings, the election and powers of officers, and method of handling funds and may make
other bylaws, rules and regulations, not inconsistent with the Interlocal Cooperation Act or
this Agreement, to carry out and effectuate the Region 5 Systems’ powers and purposes.

6. The Governing Board shall appoint an Advisory Committee in accordance with
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-808(2), as amended, and such other Advisory Committees as it may
deem advisable. The Governing Board may also appoint other individuals or committees to
perform specific functions on its behalf. Individuals or committees appointed may, but need
not be, members of the Governing Board or an Advisory Committee.

7. The Governing Board shall adopt a budget for each fiscal year in accordance
with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-808(3), Region 5 Systems’ bylaws, and the following provisions:

(a) The fiscal year of Region 5 Systems shall be the same as the fiscal year
of the Counties, as provided by law; and

(b) Each County’s share of the budget shall be calculated by multiplying
the total budget by the percentage equal to each County’s population
divided by the aggregate population of all Counties which are parties
to this Agreement; and

(¢) A statement of the amount owed by the Counties, as determined in
accordance with this Section 7, shall be prepared and delivered to each
County. Each County, on or before September 1st of the fiscal year in
which the appropriations are made for the use of Region 5 Systems,
shall pay at least one-fourth (1/4) of its share of the total appropriation
into the Region 5 Systems fund, and shall pay at least one-third (1/3)
of the remainder of such appropriation before the first (1st) day of each
of October, January and April of the applicable fiscal year.

8. Any County may withdraw, through the adoption of a resolution by the County
Board, from this Agreement (“Withdrawing County”) by giving notice to the Governing Board
at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the fiscal year. Upon withdrawal from the
Agreement by a County, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as to the
remaining Counties. Programs and services previously provided by Region 5 Systems to the
Withdrawing County shall cease upon withdrawal, and the Withdrawing County’s member
on the Governing Board shall automatically be removed from the Governing Board. All real
and personal property owned by Region 5 Systems and which was acquired, in whole or in
part, with funds provided by the Withdrawing County shall be and remain the property of

_21_



Region 5 Systems, and the Withdrawing County expressly waives all claims, rights, title,
interest or demand, of every kind and nature, to a refund or return of any such real or
personal property, in cash or in kind.

9. A Withdrawing County may be reinstated to this Agreement by the Governing
Board upon receipt of an adopted resolution by the County Board requesting reinstatement
(“‘Reinstatement Request”). Upon receiving a Reinstatement Request, the Governing Board
shall, at a regular or special meeting, vote upon such request. If the Governing Board duly
approves of the Reinstatement Request, the Withdrawing County (hereafter, “Reinstated
County”) shall be reinstated only after it contributes its pro rata share of funding then
required by Region 5 Systems to re-establish the behavioral health services provided to such
Reinstated County, which shall be made upon such terms and deadlines as the Governing
Board deems necessary or appropriate to commence such services as promptly as
practicable. A certified copy of the County Board resolution reinstating the Reinstated
County shall be filed with the county clerk of each County.

10. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law, if, at any point, only one
County remains party to this Agreement, the Governing Board shall elect to terminate this
Agreement. Alternatively, except as otherwise provided by applicable law, this Agreement
may be terminated by the unanimous consent of the Counties, acting through resolutions
of the respective County Boards. As soon as practicable after termination of this Agreement,
after the payment of all obligations, liabilities, costs, expenses and other charges validly
incurred under this Agreement prior to the date of termination, Region 5 Systems shall
dispose of all remaining property acquired under the Agreement, including surplus funds,
() in any manner as the Governing Board shall then agree upon, or (i) if the Governing
Board cannot or has not otherwise agreed, then such property shall be returned to each of
the Counties in proportion to their contribution of financial support to Region 5 Systems in
accordance with this Agreement.

11. This Agreement shall not become effective until it shall be adopted by
appropriate resolution duly adopted and approved by each of the County Boards.

12. This Agreement shall be executed in counterparts, all of which together shall
constitute but one and the same Agreement.

13. This Agreement may be amended upon unanimous approval of the Counties
(excluding any Withdrawing County).

14.  The following shall be reserved to and remain a function of the board of
supervisors or county commissioners of each county that is a party to the agreement:

(@) Final action upon the allowance and payment of any claims and
obligations against each county; and

(b) The levy and collection of taxes to pay claims and obligations under the
agreement.

[Signature Pages Follow]

_22_



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The County of , Nebraska
has caused this Agreement to be duly executed by its duly authorized officers this day
of , 2025.

THE COUNTY OF
NEBRASKA

By

Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners/Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk

[SEAL]

4891-7426-8326, v. 11

_23_



AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT
FOR THE FORMATION OF
THE REGION V COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES PROGRAM
AND REGION 5 SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, the Region V Community Human Services Program was created under the
Nebraska Interlocal Cooperation Act and has operated since August 15, 1974, under an
Amended and Restated Agreement for the Formation of the Region V Community Human
Services Program dated July 6, 2009 (the “Existing Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Existing Agreement, the Region V Community Human
Services Program operates two legal entities: Apace, formerly known as Region V Services,
which provides community-based services to persons with developmental disabilities (“Apace”),
and Region S5 Systems, formerly known as Region V Systems, which provides
community-based behavioral health services and other administrative services (“Region 5
Systems”);

WHEREAS, Apace and Region 5 Systems operate as distinct entities and, as a result,
the members of the independent governing boards of both Region 5 Systems and Apace believe
it to be in the best interest of Region 5 Systems and Apace, respectively, to enter into separate
interlocal agreements; and

WHEREAS, the parties to the Existing Agreement now desire to make certain
amendments to the Existing Agreement to create an amended and restated interlocal
agreement for Region 5 Systems.

NOW THEREFORE this Amended and Restated Agreement is made and entered into
pursuant to the terms of the Nebraska Interlocal Cooperation Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 13-801, et
seq., as amended, and also pursuant to the provisions of Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 23-104.01, et seq.,
and 71-801 et seq., as amended, among those counties of the State of Nebraska which have
executed this Amended and Restated Agreement as hereafter provided. This Amended and
Restated Agreement amends, restates and replaces the Existing Agreement in its entirety,
except as otherwise provided herein.

1. The Region V Community Human Services Program, consisting of the following
counties located in the State of Nebraska: Butler, Fillmore, Gage, Jefferson, Johnson,
Lancaster, Nemaha, Otoe, Pawnee, Polk, Richardson, Saline, Saunders, Seward, Thayer and
York (each, a “County” or, collectively, the “Counties”}, was formed in 1974 and shall continue
in perpetuity unless and until this Agreement is terminated.

2. The purpose of this Agreement is to facilitate cooperative efforts among the
Counties to ensure that persons in the Counties are provided with necessary and legally
authorized community-based behavioral health services and other administrative services.
Pursuant to this Agreement, Region 5 Systems, at the direction of its Governing Board (as
defined in Section 3), shall provide to the Counties: (i) behavioral health services as further
described in Section 4(a), (ii) administrative functions to support the implementation of such
services, including, but not limited to, fiscal, accounting, payroll, purchasing, human
resources and other administrative services, and (iii) such other services as the Governing
Board may deem necessary or appropriate, or as may be required by applicable law, to
promote or further the purposes of Region 5 Systems, as stated in this Agreement or
applicable law. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the ability of Region 5
Systems to contract, pursuant to applicable law, with other third-party providers, including
individuals or entities, to carry out the obligations of this Agreement.

_24_



3. The government, management and administration of Region 5 Systems shall be
vested in a governing board (the “Governing Board” or “Board”) consisting of one member from
each of the Counties’ respective governing bodies (“County Board” or “County Boards”).
Members of the Governing Board shall serve for a term of at least three years but may serve
consecutive three-year terms until such member resigns or is removed or replaced and his or
her vacancy is filled in accordance herewith. Upon the death, disability (such that the member
is unable to effectively serve, as determined by the remaining members of the Governing
Board), removal by the County, or resignation of any Board member, the Governing Board
shall notify the County Board for which the vacancy exists, and such County Board shall
appoint a replacement member within thirty (30) days of such notification. Vacancies shall be
filled for the unexpired portion of the term by the appropriate County Board. Members shall
serve without compensation but shall be entitled to reasonable reimbursement for their actual
and necessary expenses incurred in attending meetings or in the discharge of any duty
assigned to them by the Governing Board.

4, Region 5 Systems, at the direction of the Governing Board, is hereby authorized
and empowered to:

@ organize, plan, initiate, fund, maintain, administer and evaluate
comprehensive behavioral health programs, services and facilities and to
exercise all powers and duties as provided in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-808
and 809, as amended;

(b) borrow, receive, collect and otherwise raise or provide funds for
community-based behavioral health services, programs and facilities in
such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Governing
Board shall deem appropriate;

(¢) purchase, own, lease and hold all real estate and personal property for
the use of Region S Systems;

(d) sell, convey, exchange, mortgage, pledge or lease any real estate or
personal property owned or held by Region 5 Systems in such manner
and upon such terms and conditions as the Governing Board shall deem
appropriate;

(e) purchase outright, by installment contract, by mortgage or other means
with the power to borrow funds in connection therewith, hold, sell,
pledge and lease for a period of more than one year, all real estate and
personal property necessary for use of Region 5 Systems, and to plan,
initiate, fund, maintain, administer and evaluate Region 5 Systems’
facilities, programs and services;

® contract for such goods and services from others, either public or private
which provide such services on a vendor basis, and may be necessary or
appropriate in order to implement and carry out the program and
services of Region 5 Systems;

(g employ a regional administrator for Region 5 Systems and such other
employees as are necessary to implement Region 5 Systems’ programs;

(h) contract under the Interlocal Cooperation Act with any of the counties
which are a party to this Agreement to exercise any of the powers and

_25_



incur any of the obligations that may be incurred by that county to the
extent permitted by law; and

@) take such other actions as may be necessary, incidental, desirable or
appropriate to the full exercise of the powers described herein.

S The Governing Board shall make and maintain, as may be amended from time
to time, bylaws specifying the frequency of meetings, meeting places, the method of calling
meetings, the election and powers of officers, and method of handling funds and may make
other bylaws, rules and regulations, not inconsistent with the Interlocal Cooperation Act or
this Agreement, to carry out and effectuate the Region 5 Systems’ powers and purposes.

6. The Governing Board shall appoint an Advisory Committee in accordance with
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-808(2), as amended, and such other Advisory Committees as it may deem
advisable. The Governing Board may also appoint other individuals or committees to perform
specific functions on its behalf. Individuals or committees appointed may, but need not be,
members of the Governing Board or an Advisory Committee.

7. The Governing Board shall adopt a budget for each fiscal year in accordance
with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-808(3), Region 5 Systems’ bylaws, and the following provisions:

(@) The fiscal year of Region 5 Systems shall be the same as the fiscal year
of the Counties, as provided by law; and

(b) Each County’s share of the budget shall be calculated by multiplying the
total budget by the percentage equal to each County’s population divided
by the aggregate population of all Counties which are parties to this
Agreement; and

(c) A statement of the amount owed by the Counties, as determined in
accordance with this Section 7, shall be prepared and delivered to each
County. Each County, on or before September 1st of the fiscal year in
which the appropriations are made for the use of Region 5 Systems,
shall pay at least one-fourth (1/4) of its share of the total appropriation
into the Region 5 Systems fund, and shall pay at least one-third (1/3) of
the remainder of such appropriation before the first (159 day of each of
October, January and April of the applicable fiscal year.

8. Any County may withdraw, through the adoption of a resolution by the County
Board, from this Agreement (“Withdrawing County”) by giving notice to the Governing Board at
least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the fiscal year. Upon withdrawal from the Agreement
by a County, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as to the remaining Counties.
Programs and services previously provided by Region 5 Systems to the Withdrawing County
shall cease upon withdrawal, and the Withdrawing County’s member on the Governing Board
shall automatically be removed from the Governing Board. All real and personal property
owned by Region 5 Systems and which was acquired, in whole or in part, with funds provided
by the Withdrawing County shall be and remain the property of Region 5 Systems, and the
Withdrawing County expressly waives all claims, rights, title, interest or demand, of every kind
and nature, to a refund or return of any such real or personal property, in cash or in kind.

9. A Withdrawing County may be reinstated to this Agreement by the Governing
Board upon receipt of an adopted resolution by the County Board requesting reinstatement
(‘Reinstatement Request”). Upon receiving a Reinstatement Request, the Governing Board

_26_



shall, at a regular or special meeting, vote upon such request. If the Governing Board duly
approves of the Reinstatement Request, the Withdrawing County (hereafter, “Reinstated
County”) shall be reinstated only after it contributes its pro rata share of funding then required
by Region 5 Systems to re-establish the behavioral health services provided to such Reinstated
County, which shall be made upon such terms and deadlines as the Governing Board deems
necessary or appropriate to commence such services as promptly as practicable. A certified
copy of the County Board resolution reinstating the Reinstated County shall be filed with the
county clerk of each County.

10. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law, if, at any point, only one
County remains party to this Agreement, the Governing Board shall elect to terminate this
Agreement. Alternatively, except as otherwise provided by applicable law, this Agreement may
be terminated by the unanimous consent of the Counties, acting through resolutions of the
respective County Boards. As soon as practicable after termination of this Agreement, after the
payment of all obligations, liabilities, costs, expenses and other charges validly incurred under
this Agreement prior to the date of termination, Region 5 Systems shall dispose of all
remaining property acquired under the Agreement, including surplus funds, (i) in any manner
as the Governing Board shall then agree upon, or (i) if the Governing Board cannot or has not
otherwise agreed, then such property shall be returned to each of the Counties in proportion
to their contribution of financial support to Region 5 Systems in accordance with this
Agreement.

11. This Agreement shall not become effective until it shall be adopted by
appropriate resolution duly adopted and approved by each of the County Boards.

12. This Agreement shall be executed in counterparts, all of which together shall
constitute but one and the same Agreement.

13. This Agreement may be amended upon unanimous approval of the Counties
(excluding any Withdrawing County).

14. The following shall be reserved to and remain a function of the board of
supervisors or county commissioners of each county that is a party to the agreement:

(a) Final action upon the allowance and payment of any claims and
obligations against each county; and

(b) The levy and collection of taxes to pay claims and obligations under the

[Signature Pages Follow]

_27_



, Nebraska
day of

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The County of
has caused this Agreement to be duly executed by its duly authorized office
, 20242025.

rs this

THE COUNTY OF i
NEBRASKA

By

Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners/ Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk

[SEAL]

4801-7426-8326+—104891-7426-8326. v. 11

_28_



Summary report:
Litera Compare for Word 11.6.0.100 Document comparison done on
1/28/2025 3:27:06 PM

Style name: Default Style

Intelligent Table Comparison: Active

Original DMS: nd://4891-7426-8326/10/RVS - 2024 Interlocal
Agreement.docx

Modified DMS: nd://4891-7426-8326/11/RVS - 2024 Interlocal
Agreement.docx

Changes:

Add

Delete-

Move To

Table Insert
Table Dele

Table moves to

Tabl =

Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.)

Embedded Excel

Format changes

Olojlolojlojo|o|o|o|o (N

Total Changes:




RESOLUTIONS OF
THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
REGION 5 SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, Region 5 Systems f/k/a Region V Systems (“Region 5 Systems”) was formed
as a separate legal entity pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Agreement for the
Formation of the Region V Community Human Services Program (“Region V”) dated July 6, 2009
(the “Existing Agreement”) between the following sixteen (16) counties in Nebraska: Polk, Butler,
Saunders, Seward, Lancaster, Otoe, Fillmore, Saline, Thayer, Jefferson, Gage, Johnson, Nemaha,
Pawnee, York, and Richardson (the “Counties™).

WHEREAS, the Regional Administrator of Region 5 Systems has worked with Region 5
Systems’ legal counsel to create a new interlocal agreement by which Region 5 Systems and the
Counties will be subject (the “New Agreement”).

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of Region 5 Systems (the “Governing Board”)
previously approved drafts of the New Agreement on September 9, 2024, and November 18, 2024,
respectively.

WHEREAS, at the advice of Region 5 Systems’ legal counsel, the draft of the New
Agreement has been further revised in order to reflect recent changes to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 23-
104.01, effective July 19, 2024, as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.

RESOLVED, that the Governing Board hereby approves the revised draft of New
Agreement.

RESOLVED, that the Governing Board hereby authorizes the officers of Region 5 Systems
to work with its legal counsel and the County boards, respectively, to make additional non-
substantive changes (if any), in their reasonable discretion, to reach a final draft of the New
Agreement.

RESOLVED, that upon the full and final execution of the New Agreement, the Existing
Agreement will automatically terminate, except as otherwise stated in the New Agreement.

[Certification Follows]



CERTIFICATION

The undersigned, as Chairperson of the Governing Board of Region 5 Systems, certifies
that the foregoing resolutions were adopted by the Governing Board at a meeting duly and
regularly held on February 10, 2025, at which meeting a quorum was present.

Chairperson

_31_



EXHIBIT A

Revised Draft of New Interlocal Agreement

See attached.

_32_



_33_

Region S Systems
Behavioral Health Advisory Committee

Annual Conflict of Interest Statement

FY 24-25

The following represents a summary of current BHAC members’ statements in compliance with

Name
Duffek, Renee
Janak, Greg
Kielty, Corrie
Krenke, Sarah
Kuzelka, Jill
Meinders, Rebecca
Mulcahy, Rachel
Osborne, Laura
Pohlmann, Gale
Schroeder, Kimberly
Schwab, Kelsey
Vana, Michele

Watts, Evette

Article VIII, Section 2, of the BHAC’s Bylaws:

Conflict of Interest

None

None

None

City of Lincoln employee

None

None

None

Four County Collaborative / contracts for independent work with Region 5
None

None

None

Public Health Solutions Employee / contracts for work with Region 5

Polk County Substance Abuse Coalition



Region 5 Systems is moving!
Please update your records.

When: March 3, 2025
To: 3600 Union Drive, Lincoln, NE 68516

Parking: Free, accessible parking surrounding building.

What stays the same?

Office Hours: 8:00 a.m. — 4:30 p.m.
Phone Number: 402-441-4343

Fax Number: 402-441-4335

Website: regionbsystems.net

Questions? info@regionbsvstems.net




-3

VY
REGION VSYSTEMS
Network Continuous Quality improvement Data
FY 24-25 Q1 Synopsis

Complaints, Appeals, Critical Incidents (cAQl)
e Wandering increased by 100% when comparing FY 23-24 Q2-3 (n=2) to FY 23-24 Q4/FY 24-25Q1 (n=4).
« Medication errors increased by 37% when comparing FY 23-24 Q2-3 (n=37) to FY 23-24 Q4/FY 24-25 Q1 (n=62).

Ineligibles & Denials
e  “Consumer is Homeless” increased by 157% in Q1 (18/70) 26% from (7/204) 3% in Q4
e “Extensive MH, not managed/unstable" decreased by 32% in Q1 (15/104) 14% from Q4 (22/73) 30%

National Outcomes Measures (NOMS)

e The proportion of persons in stable living at discharge has remained stable for the last 3 years, currently at 85%.

o Of those persons in the labor force at discharge, 70% were employed, down slightly from 71%.

e The vast majority (95%) of persons served had no arrests in the last 30 days before discharge.

o Ofthose listing alcohol as a substance used at admission, 75% of persons served were abstinent at discharge.

e Of those listing one or more drugs used at admission, 78% of persons served were abstinent at discharge, up
from 69% the previous quarter

Stable Living and Employment at Discharge

e Proportion of persons who were in stable living conditions at discharge:
o 83% - all services
o 50% - MH Respite
o 82% - residential services w/o Respite

e Proportion of persons in the labor force who are employed at discharge:
o 64% - all services
o 100% - Supported Employment (3/3)

Quality File Review
e Allitems scored above the 85% threshold. This year, the best scoring item was Quality of Services, at 94.7%.
e The lowest scoring areas were Patterns of Service Utilization, at 91.2%. Providers are continuing to assess and
improve their processes.

Recovery Outcomes
e Of 575 people served, 50% had a significant improvement in treatment, which is up from last year’s 50%. of all
services, residential services had the highest proportion of people achieving significant improvement, at 70%.
e Region V is investigating the cause of the decrease in the proportion of people with significant improvement.



_36_

[0LvE0'68S] | 0LT058Ty G| S999T'6IT5 |%IE€9 | GE1SCEOZS  |%9€9 | SE1sCBOCS | OOBIY'LZES | 00BTVLIE  § V.LOL
|

(Bv'6L0'97)  $ | SVTE6TIT 5| 9TITWOE  § |%0'S9 | bLSEY9SS  |%0'S9 |vesev'ess  |oozie'9s  S|oozte9 | M | - ~ 31vd-L1NAv-AdVAIHLOHOASd LNIILYdLNO - NS
(zT'sbv'zz)  § | TU'SO6'6ET  § | vbLESTH S %279 | 95'786'69% %Z'79 | 95'786'69% 00075211 $| 000252 §| Sd | IVILNIAISTH NON ~ LINAY - LNIILYLLNO JAISNILINI - ans
(BYT6S'€E)  § | 89/LSTET  § | OUL6TZE  § |AT'L9 | vR'BBL'SSS  |%U.9 | v8'8BL'S93 00'986'26  $ 009866  $| S TVILN3AIS3H NON - LINAV - INFWSSISSY - ans
v2'si8s) pLSIe'0T S| £1799'6 S |%TTS | LBLEVOLS  |%TTS | LBLEV'OTS 00000007 § | 000000  § | Sd44 | ) ~11nQV IN3ILVLNO - HN
{39°260'TS) 29°760'TT S | 99°€St'y S |%S'SS | vE9VS'SS %S'S5 | PEIVS'SS 0000001  §|00000°0T $ | Sdd IVILNIQISIY NON - L1NaV - INIWSSIASSY - HN

puzsea) | puzdeap | penuodw | % |  pled 9% | pajsanbay Penuo) adAL - IDIANIS i —

Suueway | Sunpg | omepeay | - | ) Penuod o annsas == ==L -

‘payalond | pewafoid T %oos | wauny ——————— E =

e £ ==l u | : 3 | : o R TR

 ANJNLVISEL % ONITISNNOD NI STLVIOOSSY
— | y _ I _ _
. ! = 1 o i | I I

SC-vCAd
AYYINWNS NOLLVYZITILN LDOVYINOD




_37_

AHVIWWNS NOLLYZITILN LOVHINOD

[ev'BIZELE]  § | 861866 § 6LOBCSELS [%GCL | TC660G6VS  |%6eL | 10660°66v9 00'08v'V8S § | 0008778 § | B S -
T - — - | av1ioL ]
~ (o0800'T)  $|00'00°SF  § 00'966'TZ § |%ITS | 00M00'ECE  |%LTS | 00'v00°EZ$ 00000'G%  $ | 000006t §| s34 | ~AONIO™IANI-1TNAY-XOL3d TVIDO0S - o:w
- eLeel'vz | §| ez 9TrT8  § 69TL8'A § [%9'8E Tre0Lovs  [wsee | TT'B0L'0P $| 00085'50T  § | 000085'SOT  § | S - “11Nav-S39 WY3L LYOHS - ans|
96'59Y ¢ | voves $ 86T6L  § WS | c0/928 %9z | 20192 000007 §$|00°000T  $| S | 31YY-1INAY-AdVSIHLOHOAS LN3ILvd1no-ans
~ (o0'00s'sEE)  § | 00°008'66L § - § [%0'DOT | 00'006'66E§  |%0°00T | 00'UDG'66E % | 00'GOE'SEE  § | 00°006'66€ § | S44N AONIOYINF-1INAY-ALIISTH HLTYIH TYINTA - ans
~ vozices § wm.E 99§ 2Ze901'T6 $ |%Ee'9T | B9E68'ZTES  |%E£'9Z | 89'E6R'ZES | ooooo'szt ¢ | 00'000'szT § 1 IMVEaHLIM _INIILVdNI GI¥OLINOW ATIVOIQIN - aNS
T ovooo’s $| - § 00000S § (w00 |oo0s  [%o0 - $|ooooo's s 00000 § i _17nav - VILN3AISTY ILVIGINNIINI - aNsS
~ lowzsnl g |omessy  § (ov'9ze)l  § [%e9lT | opezeTs %ESTT | 0V'92EZ  § | 000002  $| 00000  § | _IVILNIQISTY NON - 11NAV - LNIWSSISSY - ans
- s - s - slwoo |ooos %00 | 000§ B $ - $ ~ AONIDHIWI-LINAY-TLIdSIY HLTVIH TYLNIN - HN
00000 $| - $ 000007 § (w00 | oo00$ %00 | 00'0$ 00°000' $ | oooo0't  § SANNZ X314 - HW
B pugsesp | u:mhna.>. T senuogw | o pred % pajsanbay | 1RNUeD - famm——= m0_>~_mw =S |
~ Puuewsy | Bummg | aiqeyeay | g == 1oENUOD ) ou.?.wm - o T - -
payosfog “pataslold i i ~ | w00 | waung ) T - = —
] T T o I B o B ¥202 ‘1€ fequiadag -
H11V3H IVHOIAYHIG 39aldg IHL
GC-VZAd




_38_

AYYWWINNS NOLLYZITILN LDVYLINOD

e S | R | 5 = _ R S Y —
SG66ETy S | 95TLEOBTT § | 000902 S %elEs | 86ET08S 8 | %evEs | BesErOss  § | 00SBLOMIT S oosslovT S|  wiOL - -
¢ lareeiee S| ToSTiOT  §| %iEs |6EEILLT  §| %LE9 |GEELLLT S “s|oosegic  §| sHN | 3SN3UATHO-AdVYIHLOHOASd IN3ILVdLNO - ans
pS96TT | 9v'980°T sliceesct 5| weee [crevs 8 | weEL | ETEvS ¢ ooeszr 5 |ooEser S| s “NIYGIHO-AdVYIHLOHOASd INTILYd1NO - NS
g [zesziort  § [vESeE9T  § | %LL9 |O9TOESS S| %LL9 | 99TIE'SS " $ | oo'ese'ts s|ovesste  $| sHEN | 3S- 1INAV-AdYHIHLOHADS LNIILYALNO - ANS.
{0v0zial  $ | OvOZrODT  § | 0868LE  $ | %VES orotros S| wwes |ozotzos | 00°000'06 s | o0'000'ss 5| s LINAY-AdVEIHLOHOAS IN3I LVdLinO-ans |
@ritvell S| sciwes S| 9ETerST  § | %098 |v9R0LET S| %099 | bIs0 . $ (00000t § | 00000St 5| S "S34 NON - 11naV - INJILVALAO JAISNILNI - ans |
OFlevEl S |ozzsst  §|OeEcewr  §| wrs |OUSL S| %S 00°000'ST § | o0'000'sT S| s | HLNOA-WYMOO¥d 30NVLSISSY IN3ITD - ans |
wevets S voserT S |evises S| %Ll | 2STECT  § | %CBT |TSTELT S 00'009' §|ooooss S| s | HLNOA - LNINSSISSY - ANS
SSTL0T S| wwetels S| sISe0ie S| %y | rvedst 6 | wesy |zzveest € |oooooos  §|ooooos | s | 1vIIN3QISTW NON- 1INaV - LNIWSSISSY - aNS
s loviee'wt  §|T0E9BEE  § | %esd |Be89STL S | %E8Y | B6EIGUL s |oozessor s |oozewsor S| SHN | 3S"NIMQTIHO-AdY AdV4ZHLOHOASA INJILYdLNO - HN
ANQSH w7 6| zotz€os ¢ | eves0Tr  $ | weoL |T150sTOR & | %eSL | Joosvor  §|o000cZs  § |oooarzs 5| s ~ N3YQNHO-AYYIHLOHOAS INTILVALNO - HW |
e 3 Hmmnds T s |zeerrer $ | %8I .wm vaT'0s 5| %8'TL |9EVBI0S 5 | 00'868'89 S|oossgss  § | sHN | 3S-1INQV-AdVHIHLOHOAS LN3I 1¥diNO - HW
eseeE | bocise 6| GveoselT § | Wree | ZS9vEVIT  § | wree |csotsvil | oobre'ee S |ovoue'ser  $ | S#d 1INAY-AdVHIHLOHOASd INJLLYALNO - HW
Sozzz S| zeii 5 |voTiat S| %@Ly |96BEET 5 | uSLy 95'88ETS poaoo's 6 | 00000's 6| SN | TVILNZGISIY NON - HLNOA- INBWIOYNYIN QTN - HIN
- § | ozies'at 5 | oviss’e s | wrio [ooetder S| %ris | =S oo'ooo’or § | 00°000°02 S| N 35 LNSWIOVYNVIN NOILYOIQIW - HA
(55°85v'ET) 5 | 95'BSP'6S sl zrorzst & | %ovs |seezi’6t  §| wovo |seeri€l  § | 000009 “¢looom0ey & s |  1VILN3AIS3H NON - L1NAY - INSWIOYNVIN 3N - HW.
Zeovs 6| soesy 6| OTELL s | wrzz |vagrz  $ | wlTr | w89tz "¢ | 00000T $ | 000007 § | saan | 1INAav-SaNNd X314 - HN
(o6'e8L'6T)  § | 96°€RLT8 $|zosorTz  § | %099 |seTesOy  $| %099 |seTesoy  $ | 0000079 $ | 0000029 $ | sad 17NaVY - L40ddNS ALINNANOD - HA
TSTTL'eE § | BYWLLT'S & 5eierzy  §| %es |blEe9z  § | %6S |pl8EST < ooooosy S |oopoosy S| SH | T Wvu90ud moz<._.w_ww<‘.mmm.=._o THIN
Z98v5z S| BETIOS 6 | LEWSSI o welE | 696000  § | %G | 69500 § | 0009501 Slovessor & s | NIWATHO - HLNOA - LNIWSSISSY - HIN
(szge0's)  § | 8z'e90‘ay sl ogsse'st | %r0o |vIpEOVT S| %109 | 3..«85 ¢ |ocoogor  §|oocooor S| sH | “VILNIAISTY NON - LINAdY - LINJWSSISSY - HIN
07T60L S | 0g'80v0T s osserit  § | wUiE |ovworol  $ %wrie | ov poz0l  § 0000522 "¢l oooos’ze  $| s | AONIDWIINT - LINAY - ANI SISO UNOH ¥¢ - HW
pug Jea) pu3 seap T penuoy ut "%  |pred T % uwﬁw:awm ) " penuo) adhy | 30IANES -
Suweway | 3uype “ajqepesy = ==l T penuey “Sup aomias | — e
pepafold |  pavafold — | | 2%0°05 o 1 wewmy | o - . pes == .
I | I s o - R == | - |¢~b.nwmﬂaaoumn|| o
) ] B I._.|_<MI |_<W_O_><Imm >m_|_|_<> MD.._m
QC-vIAd




_39_

GatvEar & | TUEedRiEt § |05es0eeL S | %ees | oseseeals | | wices | GEciSERiS | GOGRO'EL&T § |ooveLteMT S| (VIOL
00°T1E lovesezs 4 |ossaer ¢ | %eeb |Gsweror S| | | %66y | oseese S| 0obosTs 6| oo00ss S| sew [ - Hv0S -ans
SwoFEL § [seTiCve 6 |Zwoswss S | weer |svesozr S| | | wewr |8 CETL ..u,n_:lm‘;l lovaeat  §| san | IVILNAGISHY NON - 1INQVY - L¥0ddNS AdIN023Y - aNS

SR 3 B $| woo | - sl w0 | - B I 1 A 1 - I LvE-HINOAAdVHIHLOHOAS INIILYALNO - ONS
GEiial | 9sitses  §|CSevoer 5| Wpes |@viSLer S| wves |sviorse o |oosoaes | 00a009T | si | IYLNIAISIYNON-1INAY- AdVYIHLOHOAS LNALYLLND - ANS
{ovscieil S |oveerze  §| Omeset S | %e08 |OZESOST 5| %E08 | OTEINILS ‘o000’z § | 000000 5| SH - ~S3dNON-1INAY - LN3LLYd1NO IAISNILNI - ONS
SvTET S| VeSETE 5| ELOEYE S | v%ie | LZ695T S WPTE | 2e9ST 5| 000005 5| 0000001 S| SHN | 7 (50) AONIDYAWI-LINAY-SANND X314 - NS
oogoo’s | - clooooos & wmeo | - & | | w0 | - s|onoaos S s|oowess S| se | HLNOA - 180ddNS ALINAWINOD AONZOUIN - ONS
QotErT & |oozscTa 6 |oovewst  § | wsts |009eg0e S| | | %STS Goetgoe 3 |ovorses s |oo0o0’ST S| sH | - 1INAV - WILNIOIS3Y ¥3aM0sId N - ans
ooeves S| - slooavza s wo0 | - 8| | | w00 | - s|ovaws §loosr S| sHN - HLINOA-3SNOJS3M SISO - ans

- sl_- il $liman| - s o |- s s[oowveze S| sam | S 1INOY-3SNOdS3Y SISO - ANS
@oviTal 8| zoviver S |6odves 5| mEoL | tessovt S| %eoL | TECSOPT  $ | 00000CZ ¢ oooo0s S| s WILNIQISIa NON - 11NAY - LH0ddNS ALINANWOD - NS
N s - e § moo | - s ~weo | - s[ - s - S| s WILNIAISTH NON - HINOA - INJNSSISSY - ANS
{zzogsl 6 | CLTOEEE S| VIBVE®  § | %999 | 9ETSHGL S %a9s |seisaor  §|ooooo'se  s|ooomose S| sH | WUNIGISFUNON- 17nav - INIWSSIASSY - ANS
VEcovir € [erzsros S |uavesed S| %eec |setsasy §| | | %eeE |ge1s0Sy S ‘ooeostTT  $ | 00995BIT 5| SHN | 17nav - LY0ddNS AHIA0DIH - HW
000005 §| - $|ovoo's 5| w0 | - S %00 | - s|ooooos  slovoovor  sf osm | NOLLYLIIEYHIY TVIINIQISTY DIELYIHOAS - HW
cesersl ¢ | (698EST  § | VSSOET S | We9L |OWESSL S ~ | mese |oveesds  |ovooodr  §|omooodr S| sH | B 1Inav - 140ddns ¥33d - HW

: 51 - 5| - s |io/man | - 5 i ca— | -] S| - [ S— FIVHHINOAAdYEIHLOHOAS INIUYALNO - HA
—"mq.nq.ﬁ ¢\ Grewes ¢ |oedszor  § | wees |oczuty S| | “wzos |OLTILTY 6| 000007S S| o0o0zs S| SM | 31¥-1IN0V-AdVHIHLOHOAS INSILYdLINO " HI
[EEveET) S| sEvsSTi S |Sswzder S| wses |wlllls S| | | wews |wwidd s slovooobL  s|oooovor S| s [ TWILNIAISTa NON - L1NQY - INFWIDYNVIN NOLLYIIGIN - HA
[E6vEssl  §|Covic0s S| vCESE % | %615 | 9vOVEL § 1 wets |sviovst  §|ootoo’sz 6| oooooor 5| SHN | - SONN X374 - HA
8oLze0z S | ZEQOVVEL  § |VBZSE 5 | %veEw [OT00TY9 S| ~ | wwey |ovoozza  §|oosesvst  §|oovss’sl | s HLNOA - 1HOddNS ALINNWINOD ADNIOHINT - HN
9188 | voBITEL S |BOOMMET S | %28y | LEBSSTL S | wzw [zeesstt s |ovooowr S [oo0o0ve  §| s - TWILNIQISIE NON - 1INAY - NOLLYLIIEYHIY Avd - HIN
vzeriz S| 8SELTOL  § | TCGRLS0T S | %8 | GL9SOEE S | weve |erosose | _ : 5 o HLINOA-ISNOdS3H SISIYD - HIl
95708 & | wwoigzel S |BLLLTEOT §| wesv |ccowss S| | | wesy |zrowes S 1INAV-3SNOJSTH SISIHD - HIN
Zoehvs. 6| Bowz0s | 9655678 S | %es | vOzIsE S | Twes |wzisy §|o | HLNOA-AdYHIHLOHIAS SISIHD - HIN
fcoovb'aE]  § |zoawvEs S | RELZ'S s | %ese |ToeLtv §| %98 | WELTE S ) 1IN0V - 180ddNS ALINDWINOD - HW
|iwoesed 5| veimEoE & | €p'9050T S | %e'€S | L6'GHST S | wsEs |ieEeVEL 8 ~ TvIINTAIS3d NOM - 1INAY - INGWSSHASSY - HIN
GEietTe € [Zee0TEE S| vETGWSL S| %e7a [99Bps'STE §| | | ws7e |ssmssil 5|0 H T 1INAY - INIWLYIEL ALINNVINOD SALLHISSY - H
{@Tzivon  § | BIveeal & | bi0gve S | %ss9 | BGELLVE S %s6o | GSELLVE 6 | OUSLEGZT  § | DO'SLEBLT S| SHN AONIOHINE - 1INAY - INIT SISIHO ¥NOH ¥2 - HW

puZ IE3A puz 1235 1enuo) uf % pied swun |sieoa | % | pmsanboy T weavey | edAL | ERINER

Ai2H | PIEH
Huyujeuioy i a1qeleny R N S - Benuo) “Hio ainidg - l ey
pewaloid panafaid Bl T wees | | wewey |7 ) ~bz0z tE mquang
— 1 1 I - — T C sthM -
(A | | L R R JINIOdH3INID
S¢-vZAd

AYYININNS NOILYZILN 1DVYLNOD




_40_

[——— — _ e

e[ s fovems e [ovem [wower  S|o0wwn S| WIOL
o0000's  §| - 6 %00 |o00s %00 J000S 00000's 00000 S| SHN | ST NON-LINAY-INTNAOTNI @3a140ddNs - ans
OgEssy  §|0z9vy 5 %sv |OUELLS (WS | OVELSS “loo000’'s  $|o0000's  §| sHN | S3HNON-LINAV-AINIWAOTHN @3.L4¥0ddNS - HA

pug aeap “pu3Jeap % pled | % paisanbay penuoy | adAl | IIIAY3S

“Suuewsy | fuige | 1 .| JIeIU0) || ‘duo uulu_m._wm - - - || S ) o || Iw ) I,
~papaloig | pawalod | %00 | - ) B B B N B B = -
- B ~ | - _ _bzoz'igssqueseq o

TIMA009

SC-VCAd
AYVYININNS NOLLYZITILN LOVYLNOD




_41_

am.ogw S

0£9b'09  $ | S8'9LL'6T S %y0s

(o€ 9trv) S
puzlesp

Suiurewsay

0€°9%v'09

‘pua seap “penuodu | %

$ | s89ss'6T § |%r0S

ajqeyeny

payelaid | pawsloid | 1
e — E— e S—— e

ST'EZT0E

STECT0E $ %PO0S

pled

$ %v0s |sTeczOs  § | 0000009  § 0000009 §|

00'00009 S| S
" 1Penuo) “adAL

STETZoE $
% " paisanbay

0000003 §
- adA]

e
© juaun)

3uo IAI3S |

" IVIINIAISTY - 1TNAY - ISNOH AYMATYH -ans

¥20T ‘TE Joquiadag

RERIYES

~ 2dOH 40 S3SNOH

ST-VCAd
AYYINIANNS NOILYZITILN LDOVHLINGD




_42_

TUEss  § | 88TSTOST  $ | 9S€0VTL S| bl \vrossusT $| wvi |svosust  §|00986'85T  $ | 00986'BST § TLOL -

T sl = e s | oo |ooos %00 | 0005 = R $| s | HLNOA- AdVHIHLOHOASH INJLLYALNO-ANS
TR B ¢|ooosest §| %00 | 0003 %00 | 0003 ~ |oo9se'sT | o00986'ST  §| 54 HLNOA - NOILLVLINSNOO JILNIdVHIHL - HIN
- s|ooooo'szt S| - $ | %000 | 000000'SZT $| %000T | 00°000°SeT s | 00000'szT  §|0000052T  §| SHN '3S HLNOA - AdVd3HLIOHOASd INALLYALNO - HW
(zeovs)  § | c60pS9z S| vS6ZLTT S| %0TS | 9WOLTETS %0TS | 9Y'0LZ'ET $ | o0000'9z  $| 000009z §| S44 .-| HLNOA - AdVHIHLOHADSd LN3ILYdLNO - HIN
(eU622TT) S| TU6CLT6 S | WYSEIVE $ | %0LS 95VIRSYS | %0LS | 95¥98'SY $|oooos'8  §|oooos0s | s | 1INAv- - AdVHIHLOHOASd INJILYdLNO - HW
0TsT9 S |o08v88 S| 09/S0T  $ | %S6T | OvTvys To%s6z | OvThbS | 00'00ST s | 00'008'T s| s "HLNOA - INSWIOVYNYA aIN - HA
75669 s | srooez $|areve'e  $| %0'€z | vTOSTTS %0'EC | PTOST'TS | 00000 $|ovooo's  $| sdd - 1INaV - INFWIDYNYIN Q3N - HIN

s B $| %00 o003 1 %00 . 5| - 5| - $| SN _ ~ ~ SANN4 X314 -HW
(z57€2) $ | eszert $|veese §| wato |9zeres | %ot9 |9zetas 000007 $|00'000° s| s | - HLNOA - INJWSS3SSY -HIW
96'vES'T $ | vosar'z $|sviorc  §| weOE |TsTecTs | %80 | TSTECTS 000007  $|ov000v  §| sS4 - 1INAY - LNFWNSSISSY - HN
" pugteap puziesp, | Penuodul | % ped | % | pasembay | 1PRNUO) adAL - 39IAN3S o
T Suwewsy | Suig " aqeeny | - - - Penuo) ‘80 aanas | S

pajoalosd payalold %005 uauN)

- R ] 1 ] | ¥Z0T ‘1€ Jaquiadag

m_v_On.mmEOI

= — 1 L Nl — | - - — SSE==u =2= —

St

AYVININNS NOLLVZITILN LOVYLNOD



_43_

S areae S| SSeriey S| TUovwoRe  § (%GO | GLLGWEVL § |W6SOL GriegEVS  00wvE Rl $ | ¢ § wor - e
f@wetd) §Tawascas  §|orvesicz S |%90s | VCEGESZS  [%EA0S vrReE'sES  O0'EBOSS .»... ooessee S| sH| - pieog '3 Wooy TvIINIAIST JHN03S - HN
ThroR'e sl@gTezost 5 |TCSve'sL  § |wOLv | BLOMIOLS  |%SOLY sropTOLs  O09go'sbT  § |ooesoti S| SH| - — o Twi LN2AIS3Y FUNDIS - HN
00005 5| - clogooe's  §|woe 0005 |00  [0005 000005 “¢|ovooe's | s ] S 8vHIY S34 HOAS - HIN
00°000'T $ 00°000° 3 00°05 ~|%000 ooo6  ooooot  §|oooeot  §| s o 1ANGY INJILYELNO - HiN
Gveovil S| OEEIVTT  §|SLG6TEC S |WTSL | SLEOLOLS azsi | stGorois 0000 S |0peeove s | suN[ i o - = a0 andsay - HIN
0099968 S| - ¢ o09ea'ese  § %00 | 0005 wooo | 0005 O0D99%68E 5| 0016608y S| SHN e a)dsay - HN
GTZEL'E §|vazoz'a  § | 809989 CMEiE | ZeEeres  |wete | eeEeres 0000000 —¢loodoo'or s| sS4 - NOILY.LFIavHIY Ava - HW
ovieezEE S| - S| ooTe6zee S |wo0 | 0003 wooo  |oags  ooteszee 5| ooftevsey S| 53N T N UGHEZNOEIS SISO - HIN
(t5'L62°E) ¢ | v5'908'6ET  $ | €£'509'99 § |%z'1S | LTE06'69S %IT'TS LT'€06'69% 00'606'9€T ¢ | 00'60S'9ET S SHN Qv uoHeziigels sisu) - HIN
9E'SELD AT A lmver |zezioN§  |merer | eecigns 0000001 S 0000001 el sk — 1H0ddNS ALINNWNOD - HIN
puz Jeah pua Jeap pewosu | % | ped | % | pasanbay B — 1 penwes Jadh | 20IAN3S
 Bueussy Bujine LT — T penwey | Buo wpses | |. - ==
panafoid papaford . T (. - R I T :|.. T =
o N = e— I ~ por'iesequsa
mm_o_>mm_w I._.|_<MI IVHOIAYHIE A3 LVEOTLNI
SC-tZAd

AUVINININS NOLLYZITILN LOVYLINOD



_44_

AYVININNS NOLLYZITILN 1DVYLNOD

8v2ss9r  §|z5u/s78y  §|WCTBUST § (%ESy | 9UBSTTves  |%e'sy | oUSSZTYZ S |00'0STeSY  §|o000STYOS |  |iviOL o
VS'8T6 $|ovISE'0T  § | LZ'608%T ¢ |%0'9C | €L06T'SS %0°9T 61'5s | 000000  $|00'000'0z  § | S4d IVILNIQISTE NON - L1NaY - LSITVID3dS ¥33d - ans
. $| - $| - $|uoo | ooos %00 . s| - 5| sa IVILNIAISTY NON - HLNOA - Ad¥HIHLOHOASd LNILYdLNO - GNS
(os66z'6) 5 |ose6zoe  $|szoss  § |%CL9 | sLevTETS %Z'L9 | SLEYTST $|ooooozz $|o0000'zz $| s# | IWIIN3AISTH NON - 1INAY - AdVHIHLOHOAS INILLVALNO - NS
0000077 $| - §|000007T s |%00  |0005  |%00 - s|ooooout  §loooo0ez | sH | YILN3AISTY NON - L1NAY - LNIILVALNO FAISNILNI - aNS
VOESET  $|96'9v0'0  $ | ZSOL6'IT  $ |%9'Sv | 8YEZ00TS  |%9'Sy | 8ECOOIS 000007z §|000000T  § s B TVILN3AISTH NON - ._.._:E.E]mE_wwmww,q ans
91'999° $|vrses’s  § | 8E'€EE'®  $ |%6SE | 29'999'%S %6'SE 29999%  § | 000006t S |o00000%€T | sdd TVILNIAISTY NON - LINAY - LSITVI03dS ¥33d - HW
(cessvy]  $|zemsv'®  S|lvezzl 5 |%LSOT | oweez¥s |%LSOT | ov'ezzs 00000 § 000007 5| sd “IVILNIAISTY NON - HLNOA - AdVHIH LOHOASd LNIILYALNO - H
9T LpTT $|vETsLTor  §|89€2978 § %96y | LvoseTeS  |%9ev | eyazets$ | 00000WST  § 00000P9T  §| s34 S34 NON - 1INAY - AdVHIHLOHIASd LNIILYdLNO - HW
|lesoec’se) —§|Bs0sE LT G| TLv96Te S |%eTL | 6269855 |%oTL | 6U'S698SS | 0003918 § (0009978 §| s#N | 35-S34 NON-LINAY - 35 LNIWIOVNYA O3 - HIN
0900 §|0v966'6S  § | 0RTO0Ey § |%TTy | Oz8666cs  |%TTv | 08666 § | 00000EL  $| 000006  §| S ~IVILN3AIS3Y NON - LINAV - INTWIDYNYIN 03N - HI
R s sleoo  Tovos — lwoo |- s - slovooos s | sEN | _1INQv¥-SANN4 X374 - HW
OVEOE'6T  §|09°96T'9F S| OLTOV'ZY S |%E'SE 06'860'E2S  |%E'SE OE's0ET  § 00005's3 5| 0000568 S| si T IVILNIQIS3aN zoz..._.ﬂdn?-._.mon_n_:w ALINNWINOD - HIN
(esteet s|eseerT 5 |lozersl 5| Io/mias [ oz9tes | io/ud# | szets s - s~ s|s | - — IVILNIQISTH NON - HLNOA - JUBWSSassy - HiY
0STIST  $|0S'88KOT 6 | SLSSL'9 S |%LEV Im~.3~|mm| lwrer | szwwe'ss 00000277 $[000002T  §| S | E © IVILNZQIS3I™ NON- 17nav - WUBWSSESSY - HIN
“pu3 seap puz 1eap Pe13uo) u % |  ped | % paysenbay | " penuoy | adhy | = o J0IAN3S
T Fulneway Jue sigepeny | | o i "~ penquoy ‘fu0  |eomses | - I T T
" papslong | pawelorg = = %005 | T juaun) T o o T T -
e = 1 D T i - T - - - T QNQN .HM-QD—EU{Q |“||||| ==
S3IDINY3S ATINVS NVYIHLN
ST-vZAd




_45_

I B - - — _ ISP S i
OFEEEE  § | 0999y § [%Tw | SEEEROT § |%LIT 5E £68'0Z s | o0oo0'0s  § | 0000005 § | Y10l B - - -
0EEEE's  § | 02999Ty § [%LTv | SE€EBOZS |%L9Tv | SEEEBOLS 00000005 $ | 0000005 §| SN | ~ 11NV - NOILVOIILNAA! 808d - NOLLIN3AT¥d - ans
“puaseap | puzsesp | % | ped % paisanbay jpenquo) | adAy IDIAY3S
Suurewsy Sume R T — penuo) |  ‘Bup | sowuas - — —
payalosd | pawelold | - %005 B | waund - . - e . - — MH
s el B ) ) 20T ‘TE 43qwad3q -
w dIHSHANLYYd NOILYONAd3 TvJId3an NTOODNIN
e ——fe= ol == = d ——— ———= =118
SZ-viAd

AYYWIAINS NOLLVZITILN LOVYLNOD




_46_

AYYINIININS NOILYZIT1LN LDVYLNOD

_ _ _ = o _

oT'9/5'6h  § | v8695'895  $ | C6'88T'SIES %99y | L6VBTVBL S (%99 w6v8TYBT | YB'ELS'603  § | 00'9VT'ETI s |wioL - ——
] 1 7L $ [10/nia# | 0003 |- $ | 00000’ $  SHN S3Y NON -11Nav-LNIWAOTdIN3 d3180ddNS - ans
(be7cvT)  $|89%S887 S| - § %000 |p8UTYT S |%0'00T | v8/THT S P8LTyT  §|000005  §  SdN S34 NON -11NAY-LNIWAOTHINT dI1H04dNS - HN
8aTze’sy  § | Zv/8LT8  § | 6CSIB98 § %OTE | TLE68O0V  § [%0TE | TLE6BORS | 00GOL'LZT S| 00'6OLAZT S SHN |  HOLVOIAWN - HI
iear'e) S | vL9z6%€ay  § | EIELY'BECS %0OS | LE€96Tve § |%v0S | LEE96THZ  § | 00'LEp08y  $ | 00LEV0RY  § SN |STY NON-LINAY-SHH ¥Z HIAO NOISHIAIQ TVLIdSOH - HN

T puziea, pu3 Jesp “JoenUO) U % | pled 9% | poisanbay PeRNUO) adA] J2IAN3S
T Suueway | suygng aqejeny T ) o _}enuod - ESTER - ————— i || = -|
— papaloid papslond | B | wo0s ) waumy | B B - . —
- | — | - | ) - 1 ~ v20Z ‘T€ 43quiadag -
- B | NOILYIOOSSY HLTV3H WANIN

SCvTAd




_47_

[07ve'svT) S | OLTL9B/9T § | STESW'BSS § |%S009 | SESEE'6ER  § (%5009 | SESEE'6EB  $ | 00GBLLGET §| 00G8LL6ET §|  [WlOL - - -
] I ) s| [ - s|  700d 100d | s LN3LLVINI - L1NQY - SAYA LNWLINWOD 150d LNIILVANI - ans
([erivo'ss) | cveersv. S | 6ZSOS'SVE § |%LLTS | TLOVIWLES  |%LLTS | TLOVT'wLES 0076972, $|007S9TTL S| S#N | AONI9YIWI LTNAY - NOLLYZITIBVLS SISI¥D - ans
087/9.  §|O0CSZETT S| OVLEBET § |%ISOE | 0979195  |%180e | 09°79T'9% 0000007 § | 0000002 $ | 54 - 1INaV LNIWSSISSY - NS
- $|[vomeezer §| - s| | ze69r'ens 76691995 1004 100d 544 LIN3ILVdNI - L1NQV - SAYA INIWLININOD 150d LNIILYANI - HIA
(81°8086) $ | 81806 $l1esvs  §|%0sze | 60vSY'T  § [%orTe | 60'DSKT $ 000007 $|000007  $ | SddN - SANNA X314 - H
(9z'699%6cT)  § | 9290878, S | LBEELTIT § |%E6'6S | ELEOVTOE  § |%E66S | ELEOYT6E  § | OULET'ESY §|O0LET'ESY § | SHN | ANIDMIWILINAV- NOLVZNIEVIS SISHI -HW
pug Jeap puz Jeaj 1IRIUOD Ul % pied % paisanbay Peuo) adAL J2IAN3S
Suewsy | Suypg sjqepeny | B PENUO) ‘u0 eames | S - ==
o e I B | B = ——
) . B -  t20z ‘Ig aquianag -
H3LN3O SISIHO HLTV3IH TVLININ
|
SC¢-vCAd

AYYINIAINS NOILVYZITILN LOVYLNOD




_48_

Gyzevs) & | ovresoet § |vowese § (%sGr | 9EVELTE  § LTS Terove'se  § | oo'6STvET  § | 00'GSCVRT S ol ) - o
(zr69a'sT) & | Zr'e99'sy  $ | 9E000% § |%0'0L | p96660T S |%TSL 95'p£8'7T $ | ooono'os  $ | 000000z | sS4 YSM-S3d-1INAV-ALINQINNGD OU OlLN3dYy3HL - aNs
SEe00t 6| votesTs S | SLE00DY § [Neww |78 sec'or § |%gsv | 89es0y  § | 0000068 6| 0000056 §| s#3 | WvINO3d B VSM- M - 11NAY - ILNIAISTY We3L | [OHS - ans
Srool S| sceEgEy S| 9BGEEEE § [%vOv | vTGIETZ S [%vOb “{yretete  §|oveszbs 5 |o00est¥s S| SN | ~ 1¥oddns AM3N003M - ANS
& [srores ¢ |v@es0t § (%o |6LOI6Z  $ %oty |evOier  $|000007 S| 000007  § s E<w_.5:o<.>m_<mm__#ozo>mn_ IN3ILVdLNO - ans
¢orsazer  §|oviis S [%sE8 OBTeEvS  |wLTED | SEDEYSS Tooooo’s 00000 5| Sd i -  YSM-3SNOH AVMATVH - NS
sos0e7 S |veTe & |cEveer §(WST | Lo §lusT | “slooooe  §|ooooo’E S| SN | - T SaNNd X314 - HW
“puzseap | pualeas | 1enuod w | % | |.|u_mﬂ_ "o | pawsanbay | — |7 penwey | adhy | S “3oA¥as 00
“Suujewsy | Sullg | eigeneay | i == - o ) penuoy | Buo  |eowmses | S e T
||ﬂﬂﬂ-ﬂ—ﬂu1 ﬂﬂwﬁﬂ.ﬂlﬂm = =——=—a | — i h.X.uD.Oml T = . u—._w._._q_lu " ] B T = - o T T —_—
— ———p = T ) = = — - o - - = = === IQNm‘H_m._waEwwwﬂ eSS =T
S\VOINOWN "LS
S¢-vIAd

AYVININNS NOILYZITILA LOVEINOD




_49_

AHYYWININS NOILYZITILN LOVYINOD

YETSEOLT 5 | 99°9S8'EE8'T  § | L9OBEUSOT § |%bl'St  EE'9C69T6  § |%blSk EET69T6  §|608v00T  $|eosvo0T  $  |vioL -
v5'978'LT $|ovTrsTer  §|zzies®®  § |%E0vy  £L0LL'SS S |%E0vy | £L0LL'S9 $ | g9c'spT $|8oESPT 5 SdaN ST NON - LINAY - LIOddNS ANIAODIY - ANS
oose'sZZ  §| - $|008IE®EZ  § (%000 - §|%000 - $ | ste'szz $ | s16'822 $ s#N | SIW NON - 1INaV - STOIAYIS IWWOD FAISNILNI - ANs
oo'ssséee 5| - §|00GsEeEE S (%000 - slwooo |- s|semeee $|ssesE  § s#EN | 1INQY- LY0ddNS ALINNINWOD ADNIDYANG - NS
oooos’z0z  $| - §|oooos0r  § |woom - $ %000 - $|oosi0z ¢ ooszar $ SN | _17nav - ISNOJSTY SISO - ans
| ve252'8T  §|oLTb9'9sT S | ZTLS'OVT  § %899y BETCEBIT S %899V BETZEBIT | 968'LT $|9e8vLe  § sdN _ 34 NON - 1INaV - 190ddNS AYIA00TY - HIN
(85vez'saT]  § | BSZSTYEE  $ | TLTYB'TE (%6098 6U'9LOLET 6 |%60'98 679L0't6T  § | 816'8TC s | ste'8Tz S _S4N | S3Y NON - 1INV - SIOIAYIS INNOD IAISNILNI - HIN
00898 S| OBTIEET S| O9EWE'ST  $ |%SZOE 065588 § |%STOE 06'S59's  § | 0007C $ | ooo'zz $  SdN - ~ SANNA XTT4 - HIN
{oovss'ees] S| o0'60L'6L9  $|0S0  $ |%0000T OSPSB'6EE  § |%00°00T 0SpSEeEE  § | Ssa'GeE $|ssesee  § saan 1InAV - 190ddNS ALINAINNOD ADNIOHING - HIN
00°000°7 $ | 00000 $ | 00000’ $ |%9'9T  00'000'T $ weorat 00'000'T$ 0009 $ | 000’9 $ s HLNOA - ISNOJSIY SISIMO - HW
(90°666'8VT)  $ | S0'66V'90SE  § | Lv'OSZ'ET  § |%0658  ESEVTBLT  § |%06'G8 €S6bTBLT  $ | 00540C  $ | 005202 § SHN __1InaV- 3SNOJSTY SISO - HW|
" puzseax puzsesp, | penuoou % T pled % ~ pasanbay | penuoy adAl | ENE

T Buwewsy | Sua sigepyeny | o | venuoy L) adjniag T - )

papaloig " papalosg | o %005 ——— wauny T i i - - o
[— D S i i B - bZ0z TEsequedeg B
(3dOH 40 S3SNOH) OSV.L
FTA {48



_50_

00'000'99T  § |

AYVINIANNS NOILLVZITLLN 1OVYLINOD

(08490'88)  $ | 08V90VST  § | 09/96'8€  $ (%S'9L | OvZEOLTT $|%S'9L | OvZEO'LTT § | 00000991 § V1oL B - -
(03'v90'68)  § | 0R¥90WSZ & |09961E & |%0eL | OvZEOZTL § |%0LL | OVZEOLZT §|00000GST | 0000059T  §| 44 | IWILNIQISTM - LINAY - WILNIAIST WHIL LYOHS - ans
00000T  $| - | 00000 $ [%00 = $ |%00 - $ | 00'000'T $100000T  §| sS4 o 17Nav - SANN4 X314 - H
T puasesx | pujsesy | wenguopw | % ped | % paisanbay penuay adAy ERITYEN
T Huuewsy | Sunpg a|qejieny Penuo) uo EAINE ||
paiajoid payalold IR {E— R || %0°05 Jusum) — —
— = $20Z ‘1€ 1aquiadag —
(3dOH 40 S3SNOH) INOLSHONOL
m - — - - -
SC-VCAd




_51_

: 1 I | — | - - __ — - =
SeEES'ST  $ 20991 $ %00 | - $|%E8 T0E8ST  $|00'0006T $|00°000'6T § TVLOL )
B6EEBOT S |Z0'99T'E  §|%00 - $lwett  |ToEssT  $ 0000071 $|00000%F $| S | ~ (AINO 8 % o) TVILN3QISTH I¥ND3S - HN
000005 $| - slwoo | - $ %00 - $|o0o00's §o0000s §| sH - IVILNIAISIY 3¥NO3S - H
"~ puzieap, | puzdesn | % T ped | % pajsanbay PeNUO) adA) ER Y EL 1
Suiueway Suina B | B 1enuod .w.tnul ] nIag - B [
parsfoig papslold | T | %005 | aweun I -
- 1 [ il - vZ0z ‘TEsSquaded -
_ 34vO313L
: - _— _ = — ]l = = - —
STt — . ml ._| — S—
I e S [— : ._ = S — S
SC-VCAd

AAVYWINNS NOILVZITILN LDVYLINOD




_52_

88°277'8 S |TU'7z89Sv  $ %I6v |90TTv'8Tz S [%U'6r | 90°TTt'87C $|oooso'sar  $ |oooso'sec §| | TVLOL o
00'8€6'T¥)  $|00°9/8'€8  $ %0°00T |00'8E6'TVS %0°00T | 00'8€6°THS 00'8€6'TF S |00'8E6'TY S| SdIN ans Hoddng ssaujiopp A1ancoay
88°59T°0S S| TTWE'TLE  $ %T'vv | 90°€/¥'98T S [%T'vv | 90°€Lb'98T $|00zIT'sey  $|00ZTT'EST $ | SddN HIA Hoddng ssaujjapp Adanodey
pug Jeaj " pugtea % pled % pajsanbay 1PenUD) adA] JoANaS -
Buujeway Buyg = ] PeRuU0) “duo aomaas | —— ——— =
pewafold | pajpalosd B "%0°05 . juaLn) — Tk B ——— -
s | - . B t20z ‘T€ Joquiadag -
e - _ AAILVILNI ONIFFT13M
SCPCAd

AYVININNS NOLLYZITILN LOVYLINOD




_53_

. B = _ _ _ = S o o
Totriver S |aUvevElsy S ALTE  eETvCoETT § WL _mm..uk..mwﬂm § |eeoso’sies § |eemee'sveY S |TVIOL
ooses0E 5| - S|w00 - $ %00 = $|oo'see'oe  § | 00'se6’0e S 24vO GINHOANI YWNYAL - GNS/HIN
bE6voTT | S |9998TLT  § %8BT  EE'E6S'S ¢ lyg'g7  €EE658 S |009E8'BZ S |009E8%6T S ~ A¥3A003d/ 30I0A ¥IWNSNOD - ANS/H
(80'989'7Y)  $ |BOTIF0ET §[wo9r  vesos'ss  § %09L veS0E'Ss  § | 0057658 $|oo'sze’ss S ~ (oM S¥3HONOA ONISNOH a3Ld0ddNs - ans
vL'E69'08T HEG I lweeer  e9veL'Ly $ %EeLT  EIVELLY | ooes’ore §|ooeszeL $ ONISNOH d3140ddNS - ans
9B'EV06T S| v19S6 S |%vE  L08Ly $ %vT  L0BLY ¢ (0000002 $ | 00°000°02 $ ~ ONINIVYLNOILNIATHd - ans|
06°025'0€ S [g6vscTar S |WI'Sv  6vLToOVT  $ WIS 6viz90vi S [88'SLLTIE  §|8®SLLTIE S SNOILITYOD NOLLNIATYHd - ANS
0000002 $| - $|%00 C $ %00 - $|oo000'0z  $|o00000z S  ONINIVYL ONIMIIAYILNI TYNOLLYALLOW - ANS
00vesTT  §| - $|%00 : $ %00 - 6| 00vEETT  $ | 00'PEE'TT 5| (s1epinoid 118) INSWLINNOD LSOd LNIILYANI - ANS
9v'198'e  § |VSBET'E  §|%LST  LT69ST § %LST  LT69S'T $|oooo0'0T  § | 00°000°0T $ (s1apinoid I1e) SONNS X314 - ANS
TTEPS0T §|szszy's S |W6TT  vIvIZE $ %6TT  YUYITE §|05T26'97  §|0STLE'T 5| ONINIVYL Adva3HL WHOIAVHIE T¥OILOTTVIA - dNS
(bzz267) S |bZE96TZT & [%b I8 Z9v86'09  $ %ve8  (9v8609  §|O0UEE'EL  § | 00'LE6'EL s (v.L) ONISNOH G3180ddNS - HIN
(0F0rv'acy) 6 [OELZ890ET S |%B9L  SOETY'ESY  $ %@L  SUEIVESY  § |O0LSE0SE §|00LSE0SE  § - (dv+l) DNISNOH 03L80ddNS - HA

= o = s xo.o . $ %00 - ¢|ooooo’z $lo00000. S - i SNOILYINdOd 1vI03dS - HW

T %TIS  96'L9V'SyT  §|00vTErST ¢ uonuanald - Wl poys
‘%8'Th  ETTOF'90L  § |OUETY68Y'T § [EUOIIPEI ]

N [ o %619 B9ZSL'SEC S OO'TEL'96E  § yno aby uopisuer] T - -
vTpzTell S |SLErTeeTT § (WE'9h  SBTTIL60'T  § %E9y  BETLOLE0T  § | 00'BIVOLET §|00'89YOLET  § ~ SINVHOO¥d ¥3N.LHVd TYNOISSIH0¥d - HIN
orelrert S om_owm.fw. “¢luz0E  Sv06L'80T ¢ %TOE  SYO6L'80T  § | 00'000°09€  $ | 00°000°09€ sl ~ SHHA 3NO ¥O4 404 SNV 1d - HN
oo'seg’st S| - S |%00 - $ %00 0 - slooses'sr §|00sE8'62 $ o " 3NO 04 SNV 1d - HW
0cBI8'sy  §|08TLT Slwzo  o6se $ %70 06°S8 $ | oo0o0'0s ¢ | 0000008 3 ONINIVEL ONIMAIAEILNI TYNOILYAILOW - H _.__>_
000v6's S| 0070900 .w-.x.m,om ~00°0€0'C $ %E07  O000E0T $ |ooooo'0T 5 | 0000001 s NOI k_._<oo|w<dwwu_.>w_ﬂwﬁm_mn_mm_ ._.z_-_._s_
(bo215'57) S |vO'BEE'ZET  § (%6T9  CE'69T'99 ¢ %619 ZEGIT'9Y $100TC8'90T  § | 007778901 $ Emn_>oi e _.Zm__>_._.__>__>_oo 1S0d INIILVdNI -
'00°59T'67 3 oo.ooow $l3s'g  00°000°€ $ %58  00°000°F $|oosat'se §|oo0sar'se s zo_l_.<o:.__>_ YSIY QYOTANY] ONISAOH - HIN Is_
BOTOETT S |U6669LY S %p'0r  96'6V8'ET $%r0r  96'6V8'ET $|oozao'ss S | 0070065 $ ) ~ (siapinoid |ie) SANN4 X314 - HN
A A TS |ws9 vTETTE $ %89  PIVITE §|10696'9y S| T0'696'OY S| ONINIVHL >n_<mm._n.._.n_<.m_.o_><_._m_m_ T¥OILOT VI - HIN
00'000's | - ¢ |%00 - $ %00 - ¢ | 00'000°s ¢ | 00'000's $ ~ Buiuiest uojeupiood 100 - HN
= | - 5 lio/nas - $ jo/mag - s - IS $ i NOILYHOILNI HE - HN
00'756'9T s| - T 5 w00 - $ %00 - ¢ |oovse’ar S | 00vS6'9T 5 - (ss2pinoig lIE) INIILVANI 3 ._.Duo«.g
T puziesy pu3 Jea) % pied % | pailg _ - " penuo) JOIANES

m:_c_mEux Suyng J9RIUOD) ‘30
paialoid “pawelod | %005 wauny == T T
- — _{ . ) - vz0Z/TE/2T )
- B _ S30IAY3S IAIMNOIDTY
— I - _ i = o
QC-VCAd

AYVINIAINS NOLLVYZITILN 1DVHLINOD




_54_

vO'0ZEYS S| 96'S96°LZELT § |WVE 6V B6'Z86'E99'8  § |WPBEY .|am,nmm|.|nﬂ.m S| 0098VCEELL 5 ODSBKESELT S |WIOL — I _
= L ] L—_

TrTovete  §| PSS § [Wiesy  tYSTELST § Kieo ZeSICLST §[SEEIESRVS § SLICSR S| i S30IAYSS 35N JONVLSENS|
| - [OTTo5w82) ¢ | CLLS9TRVZL § %0215 99scal0e0’s § ¥OIS 99ECE080 S | T9SIU6ETE § wezesT §|  SAOINEISHLTVIH TYLNZN|
- pu3 Je3A Pu IEIA % pled % polig R - 1 —
T T ) I —— S N - [ B — g — _
| pesfoig | pewelod | | |%00s| S T T A _ —

2= = 1 | i pz0T 1€ Jaquadag
e SUS M - _ _ | (SWali3N30IAY3S TIV) SWELSAS ANOID3Y
. L — | |——- _|-||1I||ﬁ_,|-|| r—————

ST-HTA
AYYINNNS NOLLYZITLN LIVHINGD



_55_

V/N SOW0oINQ) AISACITY
sjuspiou] reonx)) 2 sjeaddy ‘seoueasLIny/siure[dwo)
VN V/N VIN V/IN JUSUIISIAULIY AUSWIDUBYUF DAL
V/N (F70T IPquass-A[nf) are) Jo uondaoiad
(20T Toquiandog-A[n[) mo1aay ANEnd
[g uef
V/IN sferuo(y pue sa[qr3rjau]
V/N SOUIO0INQ) ATSA0OTY
syuspiou] [eoni) 7 s[eaddy ‘sooueasLIny/syure[dwo)

V/IN X X X X V/IN X X X X X X X X VIN 18I S1030211(] JO preog AousSy| 1 AON

V/N VIN VIN X X V/N V/N V/IN V/IN X V/N V/N V/N X V/N JUQUSIAUINYAUSUDURYUH 30IAISS
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X (bToT sunf-judy) morasy Arend
X X VIN X X X X V/N X X X X X X X s[erua( pue so[qiSteu]| 1€ 190
X X X X X X X X X X X X X 1 X SWOINQ) A12A005Y
X X X X X X X B X X X X X X syuapIou] [eoni) 2 sjeaddy ‘ssoueasuiny/siure(dwo)

V/N V/N VIN V/IN V/N V/IN V/IN V/IN V/N V/N V/N V/IN V/N V/IN V/N (ST Ad - Butoduo Apusund [[e) sienuooqug( 1190
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X sEnpy| S13nY
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X saIpayos 9o 6T Ad| 1 4L
X X VIN X X V/N X X X X X X V/N  [Souemsu] "qer'] ‘PO ¥ 1A
X X X X X X X X X X X X X  [|eouemnsup Anpiqer 10940
X X X X X X X X X X X X X |9douemsu qer [eUOISS0Id 19p1r0] Aq S[qeLIB A
X X X X X X X X X X % X ¥ |oouwemsur “dwop aopm are sjuowannbay s oang

90UBINSU] PUE SJUSUISIRIS
X X X X X X X X X X X X X |oouemsu] "qery ‘ysA 010 [BIOURUL] PAVIPIY
X X X X X X X X X X X X X  [|eouemsuf AN{Iqer| [eIousn)

V/IN V/N V/N  [luswsjel§ [erouBUL] paypny
= @ a > 2 S =] = O = 50 @) ER= TE =0 >
g 2 2f |E5 |55 |52 |82 | %2 |EE| ¢ 2¢| g |82 |85 |3¢g¢
3 2 |2 |55 |25 |c3 |88 |28 | & |28 | 8 |2g|2%|52¢
® M A . I~ 1], ] =8 w @n ] M » .Wu =3 m. = = 5 = < Jacz
s 3 - oo | “ 8 SE | 8¢ ) 2o S 5 = - g | S |g=sr

= 5 o Se = ® o 5 ™ = o= = » 2. = 02 & 35§
w g2 = = = - = == ® = el o " =
L L - T 2 |g% e | "
< = ' 1 ®° o = —
= = =
yT-€7 Ad

LIOdTH INFINTIOVNVIA




_56_

s1myonys uodn paside 19aw jou pip) 939[dwodu]
p

(uorsusyxs paroxdde ou ypim) 938 ]

(uo1su9yxa paroidde yym 1o swy uo) Juasald X

%¢E6 %098 | %001 | %001 | %v8 | %001 | %86 | %S6 | %06 | %001 | %001 | %86 %86 | %L6 | %S6 [ed 03 duenduio) jo %
Iy (44 Il 194 317 6¢ 1§74 8% 47 LE (44 8% 44 6¢ oy an(enL
6T 67 V/N 6T 6T 6T 6T 6T 6C 6 6C 6T 6¢C 6T 6¢C paa1eoay spodey Ayoede)) Apjeam aAne[mwn)
[A! €1 IT 14! 4! 01 7l 4! €1 8 €l 4! €1 01 il powadxyg sjuswnoo(q
8¢ 9¢ A 197 9¢ 6¢ or 6¢ 3¢ LE [44 ov 8% 8¢ 8¢ L], UO PAAIINY [BI0L,
9T 14 V/IN 6C (44 6T 8T LT Y4 6T 6C 8¢ 8T 6T LT paaIoaay spoday Lroede) Apesp 2ageWND
4! €1 I 4! 14 01 [A! 4! €1 8 €l [A! €l 6 4! POAISISY SUSUINIO(
JUSUIISIAUISY/JUSWSOURYUH 31AIDG
($Z0T sunp-Arenuef) axe)) jo uondsoiog
(420T YoTeN-Arenue[) MaIASY Alend
1€ AIng
sjerua(y pue sa[qisreuy
SSW0INQ) AI9A009Y
syuap1ou] [eontx) 7 speaddy ‘seoueasiin/siute[duio)
V/N TUSUSIAUISY/JUSWOURYUH 991AIDG
($707 19qud3([-12q0100) MaIATY Alfend
sferua(] pue sa[qidifauy|o¢ (Hdy
= 2 O |22 | 2C | s | 2 | JE [ EXE = e a CEEREEEREEES
5 2 o | B2 | 23 |52 |32 8|28 | &2 | 32| § |22 |s5|8e8
B g | g8 | §F = | 28|82 || & || ¢ |3€ |25 258
o g =i = | = - | == ® 2 ol =2 7% =
e OB 2% 2| 2|23 "|E |E &
3 w 1 1 ® w m
yT-€T Ad

LIO0dTH INTFWHIOVNVIA



80% Attendance Report for FY 24-25
As of January 17, 2025

_57_

) . Regional Quality Improvement
Network Provider Meetings g Quality . p
Team Meetings
Network : =
° *
Provider N HEHNE gl 25,2 3 B é
HEHEHEREER HEHHEEHRE = g i 2
22|22z (3|2|15|5|5(5| 812258158515 (5|5|8|5] 2 | £ | S
Sleld|o|z|als|@|S|<[S|2|2|<|d|o|z|a|S|=|S|<S]|S] = 3 X
ACT X X X X 4 4 100%
Blue Valley X X A X 3 4 75%
The Bridge X X X X 4 4 100%
CenterPointe X X X X 4 4 100%
Goodwill Ind X X X X 4 4 100%
HopeSpoke X X X X 4 4 100%
~ e~}
22
Houses of Hope X 2 X 2 X X 4 4 100%
S8
IBHS X X X X 4 4 100%
Luth.eran X X X X 4 4 100%
Family .
ML.H.A. X X X X 4 4 100%
MHCC A X X X 3 4 75%
St. Monica’s X X X A 3 4 75%
TeleCare X X X X 4 4 100%
Wellbeing x| |x X X 4 4 100%
Initiative
*NP Meeting Cancelled 49 52 94%
g



_58_

2QYy1 pue Sugasuno)
[RUOISSDJ0.d IO
1e190S ‘14T ‘dHIAN

dHWIM "SIN 9|q3lS
eles pue MsoIl

Suuiest (18a)
Adesay] jesoineyagq |edidajelq

“wrd 0oy - "we 006

SIDPINOId JIOMIDN JO JJRIS Paseg-aousping 3.4 /T swaysAg A uotday| ‘ysoy uays| saisusyaadwo) Aeg-g iz Hed 6202 ‘9-z aunf
JETE ‘wrdQg:T - "wrdpQ:ZT
Anunwwo) 934 V/N {enHIA wea| uoiuandld ‘9pensiad ‘uolsany -¥4do 5202 ‘6 AeN
OM] UOISSOS
SI9PINOId - 1} 9seyd Jauled] ayy ujedy| ‘wd 00:s - “wre pg:g|
JJOMIN JO IS paseg-aouspIag pajIAY| EEIE| V/N SWalsAS A uoiday| s3ujuuar epualg Suimalnialu| |euonealloN §202 ‘6-8 Aelyl
ENESYIR)
|euo|ssaj0.d IOM
121205 “1JNT “dHINT ayup|g slayd ‘wrdpg:s - ‘Wogg:g
Aunwiwo) 9314 09 swayshs A uotbay pup Jauin] |A1ayD) PIV 15114 Y3D3H [DIUIA YINOA $20z ‘2z jidy
0189 IN ‘AND exseiqan
OAY [BJ3U3) BTST
S|euoIssaj0ld Y EIH |elolARyRg pue wawpedag ‘wed ot - "wie 00:8
‘asuodsay sisuD ‘Yajedsiqg uswsdioug meq 2314 v/N 221104 AnD eyseuqaN siayeads snolep viIg iuw <202 ‘9t Nudy
QU UOISSaS
512pIn0Ad - ]| @seyq Jaured] ay3 uiesy ‘wed 00:S - "wre Qg:g
S}IOMIBN JO J1B1S pISeg-22uspIAg pauAu| 93J4 Vv/N |enyIp s3ujuuar epuaig SuimdlaslU| [EUOIIBANOINL 702 ‘TZ-0Z Ya1e|n
2Qv1 pue Buijdsuno)
|euoiss3ajold oM dHWIT "SIN “J3Iq3IS Supuies) (19q)
1e190S ‘LINT "dHIAT eles pue MSOI1| Adesayy jelolneyag [ednaa|eiq ‘wrd 00:t - "we 00:6
SI3PINOIJ FIOMIDN JO JJe1S Paseg-aauapial EEIN| (k4 swa1sAS A uoiSay Nyso uaaays| saisuayaidwo) Aeg-s i1 ped STOT ‘TT-LT Y21en
199y ‘wedog:t - "wdpo:zT
Aunwwo) CEYE| v/N |enuIA wea ] uonuaAlld ‘apens.tad ‘Uonsany -¥Ydo 202 ‘vT Yorew
80589 3N ‘Ujoaur]]  dHWI 'S “191ga1S SIjIOM duly Juoly
9AlIQ UOIlRWIO)SURI] TZOT eleg pue MmSDI7| 404 Buiutes) pasueapy (1aq) “wd g0ty - "W"e 006
SIDPINOIJ JIOMISN JO J4eIS Paseg-20uspIag 9944 Vv/N sndwe) uopeaouu| ‘ulysoy uaauiys| Adesayy jesoineyag jeanas|eiqg G202 ‘1Z-0C Aeniga4
TERVITvR)
[eUOISSR40.d YIOM
[e120S "14INT ‘dHINT [e}:1% ‘wrdpg:g - ‘Wogg'g
Ayunwwo) 2214 09 [onuia| pup bunuioH oYL PIY 3521 YIDIH |PJUN JNpY| S¢0z ‘81 Aupniqaj
s1aquiaw
Alunwwod 10} 00TS
Qunasuno)
S1I9qUIBIN wed] asuodsay |RUOISS240.d IO 80589 AN ‘ujodury|
S|euo|ssaj04d YIeoH |esolneyag pue SIS1D) pue ‘Yaledsiqg {E0S ‘L4 ‘dHINT 2A1IQ Uolewojsuel| 120t JUDWISSISSY JBAIY L Y}eaH ‘wrdog:y - "wegp:g|
‘asuodsay sisu) ‘Yaredsia ‘quswsdiopuz meq| Quawaniopuy me 1oy 2314 9 sndwe) uoieaouu| si9)eads snouep |eloineyag -v136 YINOA §70¢ ‘LT AMenigay
SISpInOId wd g0:ZT - We 006
JIOMIDN JO JJB1S Paseg-95UuspIag Pajiau| 9314 V/N fenuIA| s3uluuar epuaug 1915009 YOI S702 ‘vT Atenugay
adualpny 19810 150) sNId uoedo J21udsdid uondudsaq /aidoy sawli] /ajeq

pajou asImial

(30 SS3[UN BHSeIqaN "U[OIUIT Ul p

9 9¢ 01 S5UTU

ren v

~ s8uuresy Suiwoddn

swalsAs A uoiSay




_59_’

19U'sWISASSUOIZRI@ SUIUUSY]Y 1E UOIIEWLIOJUI 310U JO) BUlUUSH esalay] 19eIu0)

15U°SWIISASGUOIA MMM//:d11Y :a115qaM SWIDISAS A UOLFSY UO PUNOY B UED UOIBWIOJUI SI0N

ERIESVITS)

J_UOISSJ01d Y4OM

S|RUOISSD40.d YHedH |eloineyag pue

‘asuodsay sisu) ‘yaiedsiq Juswiadioug me
4}

SJAqWIAN wes ) dsuodsay
SIsuD pue ‘yoiedsiq
‘JUBLUBIOHUT MET JOY D3US

|eUOISS3J01d YIOM
1e190S ‘1IN ‘dHIN

114

19915 |IiH 0TL
Ja1ua) uiules
|eu0ISsaj01d Uol!|D uoqg

sixyeads snouep

JUDWISSSSY Jeady]
yieaH [es0InEYDg -Y13]

[B1905 ‘L4INT ‘dHIAIT asafiyD vAopy ‘wdpg:s - ‘W'ogg'g
Aypunwiwio) EEVE] 09 Swalshs A uoibay| pup BunuioH DyHDN| PIV IS4 YIIDIH [PIUBIA JINPY| §20Z ‘LY auny
[CATT)]
Hews JuaWIssassy Asualadwo) ~wd go:r - 00°T
J3PIACIG JIOMIBN payruapi pue suoidwey) (N 2914 v/N Jenuip s3uiuuaf epuaug Suimatassiu) jeuoneanon | 6202 ‘8T ‘TT ‘v auny
siaquisw
Aunwwod 10} 0SZ$
3uyjasuno) 70589 AN ‘ujodur]

‘wrdog:p - *WeQo:s
$202 ‘-z dunf

2ouaipny 3981

150D

sN3d

pajou SSIMIS

uoned’o] ;
Y10 sSejun eyselge “Ujoduiy ul pjay 9q o3 ssuiuien] ||y o

Jo1u3sald

uondusaqg foidoy

sguiujes] sujwoodn

sawiy /aleq

swalsAs A uoisay




